


























101054 Planned Parenthood of Mid-Hudson Valley

Failure to meet the 60-day deadline could result in this project being deemed
abandoned as set forth in 10 NYCRR section 710.10(c)(1).

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 NYCRR Parts 86 and 710, you may not begin the
construction or operation of any aspect of this project, or receive reimbursement for costs
associated with this project, unless all required written approvals are obtained. Before
beginning any aspect of this project, you must complete the following steps: :

» submit written materials to satisfy the enclosed contingencies and receive written
approval from the Division of Health Facility Planning (DHFP) indicating the satisfaction of
all contingencies;

» after receiving a letter from DHFP confirming that all contingencies have been met,
submit a written request to, and receive written approval from, the Bureau of Architectural
and Engineering Facility Planning to begin construction, and;

« develop a plan to ensure the health and safety of all patients and staff during
construction. This plan must comply with all applicable sections of the National Fire
Prevention Association (NFPA) 101 Life Safety Code (1997 Edition) and all applicable
sections of the State Hospital Code during construction. The plan may require you to
separate residents, patients, staff and essential support services from the construction
site and/or provide them with an alternative means of egress. Please have the plan
available to regional office staff at the time of their on-site visit.

You are responsible for ensuring that this project complies with all applicable statutes,
codes, rules and regulations. Should violations be found when reviewing documents, or at
the time of on-site inspections or surveys, you will be required to correct them. Additional
costs incurred to address any violations will not be eligible for reimbursement without the
prior approval of the Department. Also, in accordance with 10 NYCRR section 710.5, any
change in the scope of this project requires prior approval from the Department and may
require a new or amended application.

If you have any questions conceming this letter, please contact the Bureau of Project
Management at (518) 402-0911.

Sincerely,

i K. Aefubome®

Richard M. Cook
Deputy Commissioner
Office of Health Systems Management

Enclosures






them. Additional capital costs incurred to address any vielations will not be eligible for
reimbursement beyond the cost agreed to per the Start of Construction form SHC 710.7,
submitted and signed by the applicant on July 19, 2010, without prior approval by the
Department. Also, in accordance with Title 10 NYCRR section 710.5, any change in the
scope of this project must receive prior approval from the Depariment and may require a
new or amended .application.

To ensure that a pre-opening inspection is conducted in a timely manner, please
contact the appropriate Regional Office at least sixty (60) days prior to the completion of
construction. Failure to provide this timely notification may result in a delay in
scheduling the pre-opening survey.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact the Burcau of
Architectural and Engineering Facility Planning at (518) 402-0904.

Sincerely,

N v

Thomas M. Jung RA.
Director p

Division of Healtlwy Planning

Enclosures















New York State Department of Health
Division of Health Facility Planning

CONSTRUCTION START CONFIRMATION

Please complete the following information and return this form to:

Bureau of Project Management
New York State Department of Health
Hedley Park Place
433 River Street, 6" Floor
Troy, New Yg_r_lf__ 12180-2299

CON Project Number: County:

Facility
Name:

Project
Description:

Construction Start Date:

Percent Complete to Date (if any): %

Anticipated Completion Date:

Name: Title;

Signature: Date:

NYS DOH Division of Health Facility Planning 8/6/2010









New York State Department of Health Schedule 9
Certificate of Need Application

Schedule 9 Proposed Plan for Project Financing:

. Summary of Proposed Financial plan:

Check all that apply and fill In cormresponding amounts.

X N/A
X $417,270
O
O
O
O
O
X $417,270
ll. Detalils
A. Leases
] Previously provided
to the Department
] Previously provided
to the Department
X
O] Previously provided
to the Department
] Previously provided
to the Department
A E
quarterly.or-annual:lease paymenis::
DOH 155-B Schedule 9 1

(09/09/2004)



New York State Depaent of Health Schedule 9
Certificate of Need Application

B. Cash - Not required for limited review

$417,270

$417,270

atta

See Above Table

Previously provided
to the Depariment

Previously provided
to the Department

8.CL ' 10% Equity Met
“of 10% of total project cost (Scheduls 8b fins 10). U > Equity Me

DOH 155-B Schedule 9 2
(09/08/2004)



New York State Department of Health Schedule 9
Certificate of Need Application

C. Mortgage, Notes, or Bonds - Not required for limited review N/A

1. Provide a breakdown of the terms of the mortgage. See sample table below.

-overall financing:
eding with the combined financing

D. Land: Not required for limited review N/A

1. Provide details for the land including but not limited to; appraised value, historical cost, and purchase price.
See sample table below.

_Total Project. = =

N/A

5. Provide 'an'afﬁdavlt indicating any: and_:ail'ralationships -betwee 1
seller and the proposed operatorfowner. = -

DOH 155-B Schedule 9 ‘ 3
(09/09/2004)



New York State Department of Health Schedule 9
Certificate of Need Application

E. Other - Not required for limited review N/A

1. Provide listing and breakdown of other financing mechanisms.

F. Refinancing - Not required for limited Review N/A

DOH 155-B Schedule 9 4
(09/09/2004)









ATTACHMENT NO. 1

ORIGINAL SCHEDULE 17C










ATTACHMENT NO. 2

DOCUMENTATION OF EXISTING FUNDS






















ATTACHMENT NO. 1

ORIGINAL SCHEDULE 17C










ATTACHMENT NO. 2

DOCUMENTATION OF EXISTING FUNDS



















ATTACHMENT NO. 1

ORIGINAL SCHEDULE 17C






















101054 Planned Parenthcod of Mid-Hudsen Valley

Failure to meet the 60-day deadline couid resuit in this project being deemed
abandoned as set forth in 10 NYCRR section 710.10(c)(1).

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 NYCRR Parts 86 and 710, you may not begin the
construction or operation of any aspect of this project, or receive reimbursement for costs
associated with this project, unless all required written approvals are obtained. Before
beginning any aspect of this project, you must complete the following steps:

» submit written materials to satisfy the enclosed contingencies and receive written
approval from the Division of Health Facility Planning (DHFP) indicating the satisfaction of
all contingencies;

« after receiving a letter from DHFP confirming that all contingencies have been met,
submit a written request to, and receive written approval from, the Bureau of Architectural
and Engineering Facility Planning to begin construction, and;

e develop a plan to ensure the health and safety of all patients and staff during
construction. This plan-must comply with all applicable sections of the National Fire
Prevention Association (NFPA) 101 Life Safety Code (1997 Edition) and all applicable
sections of the State Hospital Code during construction. The plan may require you to
separate residents, patients, staff and essential support services from the construction
site and/or provide them with an alternative means of egress. Please have the plan
available to regional office staff at the time of their on-site visit.

You are responsible for ensuring that this project complies with all applicable statutes,
codes, rules and regulations. Should violations be found when reviewing documents, or at
the time of on-site inspections or surveys, you will be required to correct them. Additional
costs incurred to address any violations will not be eligible for reimbursement without the
prior approval of the Department. Also, in accordance with 10 NYCRR section 710.5, any
change in the scope of this project requires prior approval from the Department and may
require a new or amended application.

[f you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact the Bureau of Project
Management at (518) 402-0911.

Sincerely,

oot 1

Richard M. Cook
Deputy Commissioner
Office of Health Systems Management

Enclosures
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KRCAITEDTEAE

187 East Market Street 845 876 B202
Suite 180 845 B75 8112 fax
Rhinebeck NY 12572 optimusarchitecture.com PROGRAM

Planned Parenthood of Mid-Hudson Valley

Speclalty: Dlagnostic & Treatmont
Date: 03/20/10

Oty Length  Width Typ SF Total 5F Notes

Reception

Clinicai Areas

Stafl Arcas

Total Net Arca

Circulation, Walls, etc

Tatal

Vestibule 1 9 9 1] 81
Whiting 1 28 26 754 754  Pravide access 1o drinking water, telephone and wheelchair
storage
Sub Waiting 1 7 1% 12 112
Tailets 1 8 7 56 56
Toilets 1 9 7 63 63
Business Office/Recept 1 15 28 420 420
File Storage 1 14 19 266 266
Education Office 1 4] 12 72 72
Ofece(s) 2 7 ] 56 B2
Exam Room 2 16 12§92 384 Provide a min clear loor asca ef 80 sq N, handwashing
sink, counter and writing shelf
Exam Room 3 17 12 204
Pracedure Rooms ] 12 8 246 216  Provide a min clear floot atea ol 120 sq B, handwashing
sink, counter and writing shell”
; 13 8 [98 198
Exam Room ; 6 [0 160 160
Toilets 1 8 6 48 48
Toilets 1 7 7 49 49
Nurse Station ! 17 B 136 136  Pravide a work counter, supply storage and charting
[Hovisions
Nurse Siation 1 6 9 54 54
Clean Starage ] 8 9 72 72
Soiled Holding 1 ] 9 72 72
Clean Storage H 16 6 96 26
Seiled Hotding ; H 6 13} 96
Lab [ 6 2192 192
Clean Supply 1 12 0 120 120
Closet 1 4 6 24 24
Patient Changing | 25 27 675 675  (B) patient areas, Provided with a nourishment counter and
drug distribution station including counter, sink, (ridge and
locked storage
Consult 1 14 B 12 112
Consult I 17 8 136 136
Office 1 7 7 49 49
S1afT Lounge 1 17 12 204 204 Serves os multi-purpose room
Locker Room { 17 13 231 221
S1afT Toilet i 9 6 54 54
Gas H i2 4 44 48
Mechanical t 16 8 128 128
Housekeeping t 20 7 140 140
Server Room | 8 8 64 64
Storage [ 5 b} 40 40
6,336 nsl
1,673 usf
8,009 sqft

10of1






PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The new 8,009 square foot extension clinic will consist of clinical and non-clinical areas. The non-
clinical area consists of waiting rooms, staff lounge, locker room, business offices and storage. The
waiting room will have an area for wheelchair, storage, as well as access to drinking water and
telephone. The clinical area will consist of six (6) exam rooms with a clear floor space no less than
80 square feet and two (2) procedure rooms with a clear floor space no less than 120 square feet. All
exam, treatment and ultrasound rooms will contain a hand washing sink, work counter and space for
writing. There wil! also be access to clean storage, soiled holding, a clean supply room, housekeeping
and an additional storage closet. The clinical area will be monitored by staff at nurse stations,

CONCLUSION
This project will enable PPMHYV to provide its extension clinic services to the local community
within improved facilities compliant with Article 28 of the New York Public Health Law,
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New York State Departi

t of Health

Certificate of Need Application

The applicant's lead accountant should be identified:

g

Schedule 1A

. NAME

N/A — Please contact consultant

STREET & NUMBER

__CiTy

STATE

zp

ACCOUNTANT

TELEPHONE

EAX NUMBER

E-MAIL ADDRESS

DOH 155-A
(02/20/2009)

Schedule 1A




New York State Departmen Schedule 1A
Certificate of Need Application

Checklist of Schedules Included in This Application

Scheduie Schedule Name Required Included
Number

1 General Information Forms ™ (<
2a Personal Qualifying Information O O
2b Personal Financial Statement [l O
2c Not-For-Profit Director's Statement O ]
3b Basic Legal Information and Documentation O O
4 Ownership Transfers Only- Additional Lega! information For All Articles ] U
5 Working Capital Financing Plan (Not Applicable for Article 7) X X
6 Architectural Submission [ X
7 Environmental Assessment 24
8 Project & Subproject Cost Summary 4]
9 Proposed Plan For Project Financing X X
10 Space & Construction Cost Distribution X [}
11 Movable Equipment O |
12a Adult Care Facilities Program Information O ]
12¢ Architectural O [l
12d Project Financing or Lease O O
12e Projected Start Up Operating Budget- (2 Years) | O
12f Operating Budget- Adult Care Facility -Fult Occupancy | O
13a Assurances D
13b Staffing X x
13¢c Annual Operating Costs X X
13d Annual Operating Revenues E]
16a Hospital Program Information | |
16b Community Need O O]
16¢ impact of CON Application - Hospital Operating Certificate O [l
16d Hospital Outpatient Departments O O
16e Hospital Utilization/Discharge and Patient Days O O
16f Hospital Facility Access O O
17a Diagnostic & Treatment Center Program Information 24
17b Community Need X X
17¢ Impact of CON Application - D&TCs Operating Certificate
17d D&TC Allocation of Operating Costs X
17e D&TC Statement of Revenue X
1Ba Residential Health Care Facility (RHCF) Program Information O |
18b Impact of CON Application - RHCF Operating Certificate O O
18¢c RHCF Space & Construction Cost Distribution | O
18d RHCF Statement of Functional Expenses | O
1Be RHCF Analysis of Net Patient Revenue & Total Operating Revenue O O
19a Adult Day Health Care Programs (ADHCP) Program Information O O
19b ADHCP Services-Staffing/Program Information | |
20a OMH Component  (If Applicable) O |
21a CHHA and LTHHCP Program Information O O
21b Impact of CON Application - CHHA & LTHHCP Operating Certificate O O
21d CHHA/LTHHCP Operating Cost O OJ
21e CHHA/LTHHCP Projected Operating Revenue O O
21f CHHA/LTHHCP Projected Utilization By Payer Category O |
223 Hospices Program Information O O
22b Impact of CON Application - Hospices Operating Certificate O |
22d Hospices Operating Costs O O
22e Hospices Utilization and Revenue Estimates O O

DOH 155-A  (02/20/2009) Schedule 1A 4
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New York State Department of Health Schedule 1C
Certificate of Need Application

Schedule 1 C - Other Facilities Owned or Controlled by the Applicant

(Establishment Applications only) N/A

Does the applicant or any related entity (parent, member or subsidiary corporation) operate or
control any of the following in New York State?

FACILITY

FACILITY TYPE - NEW YORK STATE I'YPE CODE

Hospital HOS Yes[ | No[]
Nursing Home NH: Yes [} No []
Diagnostic and Treatment Center ‘bre Yes[ I No[ ]
Licensed Home Care Services Agency LHH Yes[ JNo [}
Certified Home Health Agency CHH Yes [ | No[]
Hospice - o HsP - Yes [ 1 No []
Adult Home ADH Yes [ ] No[ ]
Assisted Living Program : ALP Yes [ | No[]
Long Term Home Health Care Program LTC Yes [ | No[ ]
Enriched Housing Program EHP Yes [ | No[]
Health Maintenance Organization _ HMO Yes [ | No[ |
Other OTH Yes [ | No[]
DOH 155-A Schedule 1C 1

(09/09/2004)



New York State Department of Health Schedule 1C
Certificate of Need Application

For each facility or agency referenced above, enter the name, the PFI and facility type in the chart
below.

N/A

DOH 155-A Schedule 1C 2
(09/09/2004)



New York State Department of Health ~ Schedule 1C
Certificate of Need Application

N/A

In addition to the information provided on the above chart, provide a complete list of all health care,
adult care, behavioral, or mental health facilities, programs or agencies located outside New York
State that are affiliated with the applicant corporation, as well as with parent, member and
subsidiary corporations. For each heaith care entity identified, provide the full name, address, and
type of services provided. In conjunction with this list, provide documentation from the regulatory
agency in the state(s) where affiliations are noted, reflecting that the facilities/programs/agencies
have operated in substantial compliance with applicable codes, rules and regulations for the past
ten years (or for the period of the affiliation, whichever is shorter). To assist you in securing this
information, a recommended form and a sample letter of inquiry are provided in Schedule 2 D.

Please list the facilities outside of New York State that are owned or controlled by the applicant:

FACILITY NAME AND ADDRESS: -~ | Services provided: | = STATE/ [FACILITY
S E | COUNTRY |TYPE

10

DOH 155-A Schedule 1C 3
(09/09/2004)



New York State Depart Schedule 5

Certificate of Need Application
Working Capital Financing Plan

1. Working Capital Financing Plan and Pro Forma Balance Sheet:

This section should be completed in conjunction with the monthly Cash Flow. The
general guidelines for working capital requirements are two months of first year expenses
for changes of ownership and two months' of third year expenses for construction
projects. Any deviation from these guidelines must be supported by the monthly cash
flow analysis. If working capital is required for the project, all sources of working capital
must be indicated clearly. Borrowed funds are limited to 50% of total working capital
requirements. If borrowed funds are a source of working capital, please summarize the
terms below, and attach a letter of interest from the intended source of funds, to include
an estimate of the principal, term, interest rate and payout period being considered.
Also, describe and document the source(s) of working capital equity.

L;st :.'ilties of Attachments reiated to' nr

- Borrowed Funds . List Filenames of Attac

Example: First borrowed fund source Example: first_bor_fund.pdf

In the section below, briefly describe and document the source(s) of working capital
equity

To the extent that there are any working capital needs resulting from this project, the
applicant will utilize existing cash equity and will fund such needs through ongoing operations.
Please refer to Attachment No. 3 (Financial Narrative) and to Attachment No. 4 (Recent
Internal Financial Statement and 2008 Certified Financial Statement).

DOH 155-B Schedule 5 1
(09/09/2004) ,



New York State Departmcnt of Health chedule 5

Certificate of Need Application

2. Pro Forma Balance Sheet N/A

This section should be completed for ail new establishment and change in ownership
applications. On a separate attachment identified below, provide a pro forma (opening
day) balance sheet, If the operation and real estate are to be owned by separate entities,
provide a pro forma balance sheet for each entity. Fully identify all assumptions used in
preparation of the pro forma balance sheet. If the pro forma balance sheet(s) is
submitted in conjunction with a change in ownership application, on a line-by-line basis,
provide a comparison between the submitted pro forma balance sheet(s), the most
recently available facility certified financial statements and the transfer agreement. Fully
explain and document all assumptions.

L:st Txtles of Attachme éiat
e - Forma Balance Sheets
Example: Aftachment io operational balance sheet Example: Operational bal_sheet.pdf
DOH 155-B Schedule 5 2

(09/09/2004)



New York State Department of Health Schedule 6

Certificate of Need Application

Architectural Submission
This Schedule applies to projects with construction, including Articles- 28, 36 & 40, i.e.,
Hospitals, D&TCs, RHCFs, CHHAs, LTHHCPs and Hospices.

Instructions: Attachments should be saved or scanned as PDF documents. Most
scanners will create this format. The PDF document should be assigned a unique name, so it
will not be confused with any other attachment. The title of the attachment, and name of the
attached PDF file should be entered in the table below.

. L | - ... Filename of attachment
Subject of attachm_ent. L Title of Attachmer_tt - PDF format preferred.
Example: - attachment in PDF format | Arehiecture ARaChment| - a piecture_attach_a.pdf
N ; : :
Functicnal space programlanalysns for thls prcuect Please refer to
(Requared for all constructlon prcuects) . Attachment No. 6
= .
Archttectural narrattve that dellneates the prcuect scope Please refer to
of the work to meet the determ|ned program needs Attachment No. 6
C.
Conceptual drawmgs that comptement the archltectural Please refer to
narrative, . 0. a0 o Attachment No. 6
D. . ) n : . _ .
Architect's or Engineer's Letter of Certification for Please refer to
Proposed Construction. Attachment No. 6
E.| Does the project involve
Radiation producing Yes [ ] No
equipment? NIA
if yes, a Physicist's Report and drawings must be
attached.
DOH 155-B Schedule 6 1

(09/09/2004)




New York State Department of Health

Certificate of Need Application

Environmental Assessment

Schedule 7

Part |.

The following questions help determine whether the project is "significant" from an environmental
standpoint,

1. | If this application involves establishment, will it involve more than a change of -

name or ownership only, or a transfer of stock or partnershtp ormembership:

yes[ ] no[ ]

interests only, or the conversion of exrstrng beds to the same or Iesser nurnber NIA
_'ofa dafferent tevel of care beds" S e R . -
2. | Doesthis' plan involve constructron and change Iand use or dans:ty? Coci s ryes[T] nofd)
3. Does th;s plan’ mvolve oonstructron and have a permanent effect on the 7
o b
environment if- temporarv Iand use. is involved?. S : |veslI nolX
4. Does thls”plan mvotve constructron and requtre work related to the drsposrtron yesD no[Xl
of asbestos? -
Part Il. N/A

If any question in Part | is answered "yes” the project may be significant and Part Il must be
completed If all questions in Part If are answered "no” it is likely that the project is not significant.

1. Does the pro;ect mvoive physrcaf alteration of ten acres or more? o yes[ | no[ ]

2 If an expansron of an ex:stang facrl:ty |s the area physrcatiy aftered by the .
facility expandmg by more than 50% and is: the total exlsttng and proposed | yes[1no[]
altered area ten acresormore?

3. | Will the project involve use of ground or surface water or d:scharge of S
wastewater to ground or surface water |n excess of 2 000 000 galfons per yesD no[_]
day? : o D TR R

4. llfan expans|on of an. exrstlng facility, will use ‘of ground or surface water or .
discharge of wastewater by the facrilty |ncrease by more than 50% and SRR yes[] no[]
exceed 2,000,000 gallons per day?. - : Dl

5, Wlll the proyect rnvolve park:ng for 1,000 vehtctes or more? : s yes[ ] no[]

6. |if an expansron of an exrstmg facrhty, will the pmJect mvolve a 50% or greater yes[] no[]
increase in parkrng spaces and will total parkmg exceed 1000 vehicles? = .

7. ina crty town or village of 150,000 popuEation or fewer WIH the prOJect entall yes[ ] no[]
more than 100,000 square feet of gross floor area? - .

8. lifan expansron of an existing facr!rty ina crty, town, or vzl!age of 150 000 -
populatron or fewer, . will the project expand existing floor space by rnore than yes[ ] no[_]

50% s0 that gross floor area exceeds 100 000 square feet?

9 |1 an expanston of an exlstlng faczhty ina cﬂy, town, or. wllage of more than -
150,000 population, will the pro;ect entarl more than 240, 000 square feet of . yes[_] no[_]
gross floor area?

DOH-155 B Schedule 7 1

(09/09/2004)




New York State Department of Health

Certificate of Need Application

Schedule 7

5-50%

150,000 population,

yes[] no[]

yes[ ] no[]

yes[ ] na[]

ves[ | no[_}

yes[] no[]

yes[_] no[]

yes[ ] no[]

yes[ ] no[]

r yes[ ] no[]

yes[_] no[]

yes[ ] no[J

yes[] no[]

yes[ ] no[]

yes[] no[]

N/A

DOH-155 B
(09/09/2004)

Schedule 7




New York State Department of Health
Certificate of Need Application

Partll.  NIA

Must be completed if any question on Part }l was answered "Yes".

Schedule 7

1. | List:all other state or.local agencies involved in approval of the project:

2. | Has any other agency _mad = an environmental review of this project?. If so.
givename - o L

3.|Isthere a pubhc controversy concerning environmental aspects ofthis
_project? If yes. briefly describe the controversy in the space below.

DOH-155 B Schedule 7
(09/09/2004)



New York State Department of Health

Certificate of Need Application
Schedule 8A Summarized Project Cost and Construction Dates

This schedule is required for all Establishment Applications and Full or Administrative Review Construction
Applications.

1.) Project & Subject Cost Summary data:

$414,983

$414,983

$0

N/A

$35.59

$1,388,195
30

0%
5

15

7/1/2010  (on or before)
11/1/2010 _ {on or before)

DOH 155-8 Schedule 8
(09/09/2004)



New York State Department of ealth
Certificate of Need Application

Schedule 8B - Total Project Cost - For Projects without Subprojects.
For Article 28, 36, and 40 Establishment & Construction Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review
Far Limited Review, escalation amounts may be entered as "0".

N/A
N/A
10.00%
10.00%

. Start Date; 77172010 (on or belore)
Medpoint of Const'_‘" for I 9/1/2010 (on or before)
Complen f C _ 11/1/2010 (on or before)
2010

‘Attachment Number i

For new construction and addition, at the schematic stage the
design contingency will be normally be 10% and the construction
contingency will be 5%. If your percentages are otherwise,
please explain in an attachment N/A N/A

For renovaltion, the design contingency will normally be 10% and
the construction contingency will be 10%. If your percentages
are otherwise, please axplain in an attachment N/A N/A

DCH 155-B
{01/10/2005) Schedule 8



New York State Department ofgalth

Certificate of Need Application

Schedule 8B - Total Project Cost - For Projects without Subprojects.

50
$285.016 $291,666
$0 $0 50
S0 $0 $0
0 $0 50

$28,502

$29,167

528,502

$29,167

50

50

50 $0 50
$28,502 $665 $29.167 |
$0 30 50
$35,000 $817 $35,817
$405,521 $414,983

~$0 30
50 30 30
1
$405,521 $414,083

30

50

Application fees:
9.1 Application Fee $1,250. Only
applies to Article 28,

$1,250

$1,250

9.2 Additional Processing Fee for
Article 28 projects involving
Construction. (.0025 x line 8) Only

applies to Article 28

10 Total Project Cost with CON fees

$407,808

$5,462

$417,270

DOH 155-B
(01/10/2005)

Schedule 8




New York State Department of Health " Schedule 9
Certificate of Need Application

Schedule 9 Proposed Plan for Project Financing:

I. Summary of Proposed Financial plan: PLEASE ALSO REFER TO ATTACHMENT NO. 3
(FINANCIAL NARRATIVE)

Check all that apply and fill in corresponding amounts.

N/A
& $417,270
O
0
0 | E Morigage,
O F Raf‘nancmg __ :
0 Total Mortgage!Notes/Bonds pEu :
Ref“nancmg (E+: F) & _
] Total Pro;ect Fmanc:ng’ (Sum A to F) $417,270
ll. Details
A. Leases
. = -- _ |NotApplicable|  Title of attachment
1. Llst each Iease wuth correspondmg cost as n‘ purchased each ieased
itemn., - Breakdown' each Iease by total project cost and X
costs |f app!scab!e ‘ '
] Please refer to
2. Attacha co of the osed. Eease(s) : Attachment No. 7
3. Submit an affidavit indicating: any business or family relationships. 0] Please refer to
between prmcspals of the landiord and tenant Attachment No. 7
4, If appllcabie prowdeacopy of ihe Iea' > assignment agreemen nd
the Landlord's consent to the' proposed lease’ ass:gnment -
5. If applicable, sdentlfy separately the totai square. footeg_e to be ' Article 28 = 8.009 sf
occupied by the Article. [ Entire Bldg, = 60,000 sf
building .- -
B. A_tt_ech two letters fro Please refer to
rate : Cl Attachment No. 7
7 For a!l capstai Ieases as def ned by FASB_Statement:No 43,000
'Accounting for Leases”, prov;de the: net present value of the monthty, X
quarterly or annual lease payments. - . g D

DOH 155-B Schedule 9 1
(09/09/2004)






New York State Department of Health
Certificate of Need Application

C. Mortgage, Notes, or Bonds - Not required for limited review N/A

1.

Frovide a breakdown of the terms of the mortgage. See sample table below.

~ Schedule 9

_ TolProjest [ Units

Interes

N/A

o Principal i

2_ Attach acopyofa lett f_j_mterest:from the intended sourc qf-
:permanent f'nancmg that indicates 4
: v ina X
attach a copyof a Ietter from'a mortg__’ga banker e G
4 lf the ﬁnanmngiof this. project becomes part qf a targer_overal

| =
proceedmg wath the combined fi nancmg L

D. Land: Not required for limited review N/A

1. Provide details for the land including but not limited to; appraised value, historical cost, and purchase price.

See sample table below.

" Appraised Value

| TotalProject =~

- Historical Cost:

N/A

“:- Purchase Price

| name of the appr&user L

4, Submlt afcopy of-the proposed purchaseloption agreement.-

seller and the proposed operator/owner. .

5. Prov:cle an afﬁdawt sndscatlng any and aEI relatlonshaps between:_'__ . :::.

M| X| X

DOH 155-B Schedule 9
(09/09/2004)




New York State Departmnt
Certificate of Need Applicati

of Health
on

E. Other - Not required for limited review N/A

" Schedule 9

1. Provide listing and breakdown of other financing mechanisms.

. Total Project =

Title of attachment

2 Attach cfocumentat:on and a_descnptlon of ihe method of fin nancmg : 5

F. Refinancing - Not required for limited Review N/A

Title of attachment

Appilcéble

1 Provide a breakdown of the terms of the

refinancing, including
prmcapai lnterest rate and term remamlng"-"--

X

fems‘ting“]ieﬁhofders of the. pfoposed fi nanclhg p!an'

DOH 155-B
(09/09/2004)

Schedule 9





















New York State Department of Health
Certificate of Need Application

Schedule 13B

Table 13B - 2. Ambulatory surgery centers should complete the following Table:

List all practitioners -- inciuding surgeons, Dentists and Podiatrists, who have expressed an interest in practicing at the Center.
NOTE: Attach copies of letters from each giving the number and type of procedures he or she expects to perform per year.

. _._Procedures

Prlwleges

_[ritle and File

t_t’_ét’:h:ﬂe”ﬁ

DOH 155-D Schedule 138
(07/31/07)
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New York State Department of Health Schedule 13D
Certificate of Need Application

Table 13D -3 N/A - Ouipatient Project Only

* Various Inpatisnt services may be reimbursed as discharges or days. Applicant should Indicate which method applies to this table by
choosing the appropriate checkbox,

Patient Days ] Patient Discharges 1

N/A

N/A

N/A

Qutpatient Outpatient Ouipatient

Only Only Only

DOH 155-D
(07/31/2007) Schedule 13D


















New York State Department of Health chedule 17B

Certificate of Need Application
Quality and Accreditation:

1. Please cite relevant accreditations, certifications or awards attained by the applicant which build
confidence in services of high quality. Examples include certification as a Federally Qualified
Neighborhood Health Center.

PPMHV is affiliated with Planned Parenthood Federation of America, which sets professicnal,
medical and operational standards for the Planned Parenthood affiliates. Please refer to the Project
Narrative {Attachment No. 2) for additional information.

2. Describe relevant programs or resources the applicant will bring to the new facility. include existing
programs that have proven track records at the applicant's other sites, if applicable, as well as
programs the applicant plans for the future. Such programs include:

a. Programs specially tailored to the health needs of the population of the service area.
b. Grantfunded programs.
c. Scholarships or fellowships.

This project represents the relocation and consolidation of two (2) existing extension clinics of
PPMHV, as well as the relocation of one service from a third existing extension_clinic to the new site.
Consequently, ail programs and resources related to these sites/services will be brought to the
relocated and consolidated extension clinic.

Generally, services provided by PPMHV include, but are not limited to, the following: reproductive
healthcare; birth control methods, procedures and supplies; and medically approved information,
advice and treatment of infertility problems. PPMHV also provides health education, counseling and

resource services to individuals and other health-related organizations.

Please refer to the Project Narrative {Attachment No. 2} for additional infermation.

3. Describe the applicant’s experience or track record serving similar populations:

Since 1934, Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley has been a steady and trusted presence
in the region. Please refer to the Project Narrative (Attachment No. 2} for additional information.

DOH 155-D Schedule 17B 3
(2/20/2008)



New York State Depa ent of Health Schedule 17B

Certificate of Need Application

Primary and Specialty Care Services Review Criteria:
Expansion of Services

N/A — NOT A CONVERSION

When a CON application proposes conversion of a group or solo medical practice to Article 28 status, the
applicant must provide a written analysis of the effect of the proposal on the following factors:;

1. The full time equivalent (FTE) number of primary care physicians and specialists, by specialty,
engaged in the practice after the conversion compared with the number before conversion.

2. The (FTE) number of non-physician providers of primary care and specialty care, by specialty, such
as Physician Assistants, Certified Nurse Practitioners, Physical Therapists, and Dental Assistants
after the conversion compared with the number before conversion.

3. The number of primary care and speciaity visits, by specialty, after the conversion compared with
the number before conversion,

4. The array of services to underserved clients after the conversion compared with the number before
conversion.

DQOH 155-D Schedule 17B 4
(2/20/2009)



New York State Department of Health chedule 17B

Certificate of Need Application

Target Population and Service Area:

N/A —~ FAMILY PLANNING PROVIDER

All applications involving primary care services must provide a written analysis that clearly demonstrates
that the proposal meets at least one of the following criteria. For criteria that do not apply, enter "not
applicable™:

1. The proposed clinic is in an underserved area as indicated by location in a Health Professional
Shortage Area (HPSA) or Medically Underserved Area (MUA).

2. The population to be served exhibits poor health status, as measured by factors such as high levels
of inpatient discharges for ambulatory care sensitive conditions (ACSC), incidences of diseases and
conditions in excess of standards in Healthy People 2010 or other pertinent indicators.

3. The primary care services of the proposed clinic will be targeted to a group or population with
special needs or conditions that make it difficult for them to obtain adequate primary care in clinics
or physician practices serving the general population. Examples of such needs and conditions are:

= Developmental disabilities.

HIV.

Alcohol Substance Abuse,

Health needs relating to aging.

Menta! Health needs.

Homelessness

Linguistic or cultural barriers in obtaining access to primary care.

DOH 155-D Schedule 17B 5
(2/20/2009)



New York State Department of Health chedule 17B

Certificate of Need Application

Capacity of Existing Primary Care Providers

The project narrative should describe existing primary care services in the proposed service area. The
narrative should include the number and location of existing D&TCs, extension clinics and part-time clinics
and a summary of primary care services available through private practices. The narrative should indicate
whether travel time and transportation are factors in access to primary care. Examples of trave! related
issues include topography, seasonal weather conditions, and availability of public transportation.

Applicants are not expected to describe the volume of services delivered by existing providers, since they
will rarely have access to such data, but the project narrative should indicate that the applicant is reasonably
familiar with the overall availability of primary care in the targeted area.

In instances where the target area is likely to already have significant primary care resources, the CON
proposal will be reviewed for the following need related factors:

» The ratio of primary care physicians to population in the proposed service area. HPSA uses a ratio
of 1.0 FTE physicians to 3000 persons; Medicaid Managed Care uses a ratio of 1 to 1500.

* The number of primary care physicians in the proposed service area who are "active” in serving the
Medicaid population. This is often measured as physicians who are reimbursed $5000 or more per
year by Medicaid.

* The annual number of primary care visits per person by Medicaid eligible persons in the proposed
service area. An average jower than 2.0 visits per person is often considered a problem.

* The percentage of the Medicaid population that is enrolied in Managed care will be taken into
account where appropriate.

» The current volume of primary care visits to existing D&TC and Extension clinics.

Not all of the above criteria need be evaluated for all applications. The number will vary depending on the
type and location of services proposed and on how thoroughly the application addresses need in the project
narrative and the related schedules.

This_project represents the relocation and consolidation_of two (2} existing extension clinics of
PPMHYV, as well as the relocation of one {1) service from a third extension clinic site to the new site.
Consequently, this project will have minimal to no impact upon existing providers.

DOH 155-D Schedule 17B 6
(2/20/2009)












New York State Department of Health Schedule 17C

Certificate of Need Application

END STAGE RENAL DISEASE (cont)  NIA

1. Provide a five-year analysis of projected costs and revenues that demonstrates that the proposed
dialysis services will be utilized sufficiently to be financially feasible.

| N/A

2. Provide evidence that the proposed dialysis services will enhance access to dialysis by patients,
including members of medically underserved groups which have traditionally experienced difficulties
obtaining access to health care, such as; racial and ethnic minorities, women, disabled persons , and
residents of remote rural areas.

N/A

3. Provide evidence that the hours of operation and admission policy of the facility will promote the
availability of dialysis at times preferred by the patients, particularly to enable patients to continue
employment.

| N/A

4. Provide evidence that the facility is willing to and capable of safely serving patients.

| N/A

5. Provide evidence that the proposed facility will not jeopardize the quality of care or the financial viability
of existing dialysis facilities. This evidence should be derived from analysis of factors including, but not
necessarily limited to current and projected referral and use patterns of both the proposed facility and
existing facilities. A finding that the proposed facility will jeopardize the financial viability of one or more
existing facilities will not of itself require a recommendation to of disapproval.

| N/A

DOH 155-D Schedule 17C 3
(02/20/2009)









New York State Department of Health Schedule 17D
Certificate of Need Application
PLEASE REFER TO ATTACHMENT NO. 8 (OPERATING BUDGET [TEMS)

Table 17D-1 D&TC Allocation of Operating Costs Current Year Continued:

B

DOH 155-D Schedule 17D 3
(2/20/2009)






New York State Department of Health Schedule 17D
Certificate of Need Application
PLEASE REFER TO ATTACHMENT NO. 8 (OPERATING BUDGET ITEMS)

Table 17D-1 D&TC Allocation of Operating Costs First Year Continued

SUBTOTAL

389 SUBTOTAL
DOH 155-D Schedule 17D 5
(2/20/2009)







New York State Department of Health Schedule 17D
Certificate of Need Application
PLEASE REFER TO ATTACHMENT NO. 8 (OPERATING BUDGET ITEMS)

Table 17D-1 D&TC Allocation of Operating Costs Third Year Continued:
‘a T

DOH 155-D Schedule 17D 7
(2/20/2009)



New York State Department of Health Schedule 17E

Certificate of Need Application

Schedule 17 E - D&TC Statement of Revenue:
This schedule consists of: "Detailed Monthly Cash Flow Analysis for the first year of operations to be
submitted as an attachment; and analysis of:"

- Patient Revenue

- Other Operating Revenue

- Non-Operating Revenue

- Charges

Provide a breakdown of the utilization (threshold visits) by payer source. Provide supporting calculations for

the rates assumed for each payer.
(CONSOLIDATED SITE — TOTAL)
Table 17E-1 D&TC Statement of Revenue YEAR 1

$384,892]

$310,7589
$80,183
$333,7508

30

$1,109,584

$618,152
3618,152

| al Rev ) $1,727,736

* Represents $2,250,000 in anticipated family planning contract funding times 27.5% (represents the
percentage of family planning visits projected to be provided at the relocated/consolidated site, as compared
to total projected family planning visits of PPMHV,

PLEASE ALSO REFER TO ATTACHMENT NO. 8 (OPERATING BUDGET ITEMS)

DOH 155-D Schedule 17E 1
(2/20/2009)



New York State Department of Health Schedule 17E

Certificate of Need Application
Schedule 17 E - D&TC Statement of Revenue:

This schedule consists of: "Detailed Monthly Cash Flow Analysis for the first year of operations to be
submitted as an attachment; and analysis of."

- Patient Revenue

- Other Operating Revenue

- Non-Operating Revenue

- Charges

Provide a breakdown of the utilization (threshold visits) by payer source. Provide supporting calculations for

the rates assumed for each payer.
{CONSOLIDATED SITE — TOTAL)
Table 17E-1 D&TC Statement of Revenue YEAR 3

$408,332

$329,684|
$85,066]
$354,075

$0

$1,177,158

$618,152
$618,152]

IV: Tol 11 $1,795,310)

* Represents $2,250,000 in anticipated family planning contract funding times 27.5% (represents the
percentage of family planning visits projected to be provided at the relocated/consolidated site, as compared
to total projected family planning visits of PPMHV.

PLEASE ALSO REFER TO ATTACHMENT NOQ. 8 {OPERATING BUDGET ITEMS)

DOH 155-D Schedule 17E 2
(2/2012009)



ATTACHMENT NO. 1

PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

BOARD RESOLUTION







ATTACHMENT NO. 2

PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

PROJECT NARRATIVE








































The general operations of the extension clinic will adhere to the standards required under 10
NYCRR. The Center’s standards of patient care emphasize accuracy and timeliness of diagnosis, and
referral to appropriate medical practitioners. All existing policies and procedures in place at PPMHV
will be incorporated into the operation of the relocated and consolidated extension clinic, which will

continue to be operated under the same high standards of care currently in practice at the Center.

13



PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

APPENDIX T

LETTER OF SUPPORT - HOSPITAL







PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

APPENDIX I1

MAP OF REGION WITH SITES

AND

CALCULATION OF DRIVING DISTANCES










PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

APPENDIX III

CURRICULUM VITAE - MEDICAL DIRECTOR




ATTACHMENT NO. 3

PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

FINANCIAL NARRATIVE










Please refer to the first page of Attachment No. 8, which is a document showing the projected, overali
positive operations of PPMHYV in “Year 1”, which aligns with the Year 1 in this C.O.N. Application.
This document shows that, by Year 1, PPMHV overall is anticipated to experience a positive net
income of about $67,256 {plus an anticipated $100,000 in positive changes from existing assets}. In
short, this project is a vital component to the overall plan of improved efficiency, operations

(including enhanced accessibility} and financial strength of the Center.



ATTACHMENT NO. 4

PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

RECENT INTERNAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

AND

2008 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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Independent Auditor's Report

The Board of Directors
Planned Parenthood of the
Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Planned

Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of
December 31, 2008, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of aAmerica and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Governmant Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards regquire that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement., An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
py management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson
Valley, Inc. as of December 31, 2008, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash Ffiows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Governmant Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated June 3, 2009 on our consideration of Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson
valley, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for

assessing the results of our audit.

80 Washington Street, Sulte 202
Poughkeepsie, NY 12601

{845) 485-6200

(845) 485-6400
dbb@dbbcpas.com
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The Board of Directors
Planned Parenthecod of the
Mid-Hudson Valley, Ing.

Our audit was conducted Ffor the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic
financial statements of Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc. taken
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Mapnagement and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizatlons, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stacted, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

Bailey Browne CPA & Associates

June 3, 2009
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Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2008

Assetrs
2008
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 882,981
Annuity Receivable (Note 3} 22,526
Investments (Note 4) 841,148
Government Grants Receivable 309,317
Contributions Receivable 57,158
Medicaid Receivable 33a,118
Other Receivables 14,969
Prepaid Expense 9,784
Inventory 122,707
Deposits 8,526
Tctal Current Assets 3,199, 234
Fixed Assets
Land 400, 000
Buildings and Improvements 3,483,712
Furniture and Equipment 544,325
Automobile 22,498
4,450,535
Less; Accumulated Depreciation (Note 2) {1.800,132)
Net Fixed Assets 2,650,403
Total Assets 5,849, 637
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 293,085
Refundable Advances 1,358
Governmental Agency Pavable {Note &) 58,333
Total Current Liabilities 352,776
Non Current Liabilities
Governmental Agency Payable {Note 5) 14,836
Total Liabilities 367,612
Net Assets
Unrestricted 5,222,346
Temporarily Restricted (Note 6} 259,679
Total Net Assets 5,482,025
Commitments (Note 7) -
Contingencies {Note 13) -
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 5,849 637

The accempanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,



fAevenues, Gainsg and Other Support
Patient Fees
Governmeni Grants
Carpaigrn and Activitieg
investment Income {Hote 4)
Education Income
Rental Income
Hisreilaneous Incaome
Donation Tn Kind
Donated Stock
Yoiunteer Labor and Services
Gain {LosBj on Sale of Fixed Assets

Het Assets Released From Bescricticns
Gatisfaction Of Program Resarictions

Gty Total Revenues, Gains and Other Support

o

Expenses
Progiram Services
Patient Services
Profesgional and Public Beaith Education
Public Education

Total Program Services
Supporting Services
Hanagement and General
Fund Raising

Trtal Supporting Services

Total Expenses

Change In Met Assers

Net Assets - Beginning of Vear

Ket mssets - End nf Year

The accoTpanying

Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudsen Valley, Inc.
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, Y008

Temporarily
JLnrestricted.. . Restricted
4,810,738 -

- 3,479,274
705,652 186,214
{287,5221 -

2,310 -
7,800 -
1,599 -
8,525 -
6,979 -

3. 740 -
£1,985) =
4,8623.Bi6 3,669,488

257 13,643,257%
B, 507,09] 22.23])
5,510,967 -
1,633,215 -
1,173,118 —_——
1,707,019 -
296,654 -
2,003 673 -
3.176,39]1 —_—
{669,828) 22,211
5,892, 744 237,448
5,223,346 258,679

nctes are an integral part of these finapcial statemenis.

Total
2008

4,410,738
3,479,374
691,866
12R7,522)
2,310
L
7.599
8,525
6,979

X, 740

5,510,287
1,631,215
——31.136
1,171,318
1,707,019

296,654

3,57

9.176,991

1647, 667}

Page 4
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Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudscn Valley. Inc.

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31. 2048

Program Services — Suppegting Sereiges
Tortal Professional & Total Hanagement
Family Surgical Patient Publiz Health Pubiic Program and Fund Toral
Clinic and Office Salaries 2,320,119 267,540 2,587,653 878,354 15,554 1.481,564 786,996 161,523 948,519 $.430,DR)
Densted Services - - ~ 3,730 - 3,740 - - - 3. 740
Tayrolii Tames and Fringe
Benefics tNote B} 125.6 23,018 748, 66% 233,014 2,816 285,513 205,408 3R, 47¢ 241,985 1.22%, 399
Total Compensaktion
and Benefites 3,045,764 290,558 1,116,322 1,116,128 18,387 4,470,817 992,403 200,002 1,192,304 ‘5,661,221
Contract Services 131,945 iEB, 010 3i92,95% 10,941 - 350,659 135,012 2,758 137,770 ABR, 6568
Rent and Occupancy 291,326 47,294 138,620 72,506 58 412,184 47.473 9,703 52,174 464,358
0ffice ENpences 97,2598 6,115 103,373 41,331 1,000 145,704 37,581 3,325 41,906 IRT.EID
Telephore 41,213 1,601 42,814 - 30,768 13s 73,711 9,613 2,798 i2.4n% R&, 126
Travel 48, 851 14,317 61,16F 43,310 BO2 107,280 ip.00% 6,815 36,6824 144,104
Education Proiects and Supplies - - - 54,516 - 54,536 1,800 - 1. 800 56,336
Conferences and Traiaing - - -~ 58,6A3 245 SR, 314 Bi0 400 1.210 60,1443
Protessional Fees 1,628 - 1,829 1,987 - 5,816 78,785 - 78,78% 84,601
Foctage 26,669 6 26,691 1,682 1R1 e, 554 £.630 7,631 14,321 44,875
Dcnaticns In Kind - ~ - . = - - - B, %29 R, 52% 8,529
Special Events and Fund Raising - - - - - - - 48,117 48,117 4H, 117
Diagnostic Tests . 147,389 7,392 154,561 . - - 154,561 - - - 154.963
Contraceptive Supplies 301,245 - 01,245 2,67t - 303,916 - - ~ 303,916
Cliinic Expenses 161,244 166,001 527,23% - - 531,248 - - - 527,245
Hisceilaneous Overhead 6,071 5,015 7,086 2,950 2,330 IN, 968 33,633 - 31,611 50,599
Insurance (Hote 10% 54,484 53,626 108,110 400 - 108,510 5,879 - 6,879 3i5.389
Dues and Subscriptions 20,314 551 214,869 . 250 1,633 22.748 53,667 320 52,987 75,7135
Bad Debts 13,932 5,643 17,555 - - 11,559 29,8119 4,430 34,250 LRI
kKévertising & Promotion 23,974 - 23,974 . 6%,090 3,047 92,911 41,835 - 31,635 134,746
tYS Peimburrement (Note 5} - -~ - - - - - -~ - -
rant Expenses - = - 55,000 - 65,080 - s - 55,000
Total Expenses Before
Depreciaticn 4.611, 464 B3, 548 5,394,413 1,598,841 28,598 7,021, 8372 1,4%8,009 295,820 1,793,829 #,815, 601
Depreciation 102,613 _13.942 11 4 21,739 —— 2.928 142,822 16,447 PR} X 19,381 160,103
Subtotal 4,714,018 796,891 %,510,967 3,622,572 31,136 7,164,674 1,514,456 296,654 1,811,110 8,975,784
Payzents to ALfiliated
Organizations - - - 0644 - R’ 644 193,563 —— 92 b _3201.297
Total Expenses 4,714,076 796, 391 5,510,967 1L.633,219 31,136 7,173,318 707 36,854 003,673 2.176,991

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenrs.



Cash flows

Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended Decembher 31, 2008

from operating activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by/used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Less {Gain) on sale of investments
Loss (Gain}) on sale of fixed assets
Unrealized {(Gain} Loss on investments
Donated Stock

Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Decrease
Increase
Increase

Net

Cash flows
Purchase
Purchase
Proceeds
Proceeds
Net

Cash flows

Decrease

/{Increase) in grants receivable

/ (Increase) in other receivables
/{Increase) in prepaid expenses
/(Increase} in contributions receivable
/(Increase) in medicaid receivables
/{Increase}) in inventories

/{Decrease) in accounts payable

/ {Decrease) in refundable advances

cash provided /(used) by operating activities
from investing activities:

of fixed assets

of investments

from sale of investments

from sale of fixed assets

cash used in investing activities

from financing activities:

in governmental agency payable

Net Increase /{Decrease) in cash

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of year

Supplemental Disclosure:

Noncash Operating Activities:
Donated labor

Noncash Investing Activities:
Donated marketable securities

Page 6

2008

{647,667}

160, 103
87,869
1,985
290,602
(6,979)
73,681
4,601
{9,034}
{13,393}
35,215
(16,464)
36,843

(96,218}
(88,856}

{40, 497)
{507,305}
468,933

2,060

(76,873)

{43,497)

(213,226}
1,102,207

882,981

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Page 7
Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson valley, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATICN

Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc. is a not-for-profit organization
licensed by the State of New York to operate centers wherein it provides medical
services, including but not limited to, reproductive health care; birth control
methods, procedures and supplies; and medically approved information, advice and
treatment of infertility problems. It also provides health education, counseling
and resource services to 1ndividuals and other health related organizations as
well as services to develop community attitudes supportive of a comprehensive
program relating to human sexuality and reproductive freedom. The Organization
is supported primarily by government grants, patient and medicaid fees and

contriburions.

Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc. is affiliated with Planned
Parenthood Federation of America which sets professional, medical and operational
standards for the Planned Parenthood affiliates. These standards must be complied
with in order to use the Planned Parenthood name.

The Organization has elected to be exempt from federal income taxes under Section
501 (c} (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income
taxes has been made on the accompanying financial statements.

Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc. is related to the Planned
Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley Action Fund, Inc., an organization that
qualifies as a Section 501(c) (4) tax-exempt organization pursuant to the Internal
Revenue Code and, therefore, its income is not subject to federal or state income
taxes. The assets and revenues of Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley
Action Fund, Inc. have not been included in these financial statements as of
December 31, 2008 as they are not material. During the year ended December 31,
2008, Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc. did not give a grant to
Planned Parenthood of the Mid~Hudson Valley aAction Fund, Inc. to be used for

educational purposes.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF STGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual method of
accounting, except for revenues receivable directly from patients which, because
of their uncertainty of collection, are not considered income until received.
These amounts are not considered material.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
{SFAS) No. 117, Financial Statemente of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under SFAS
No. 117, the Grganization is required to veport information regarding its
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets.
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Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQLICIES {(Continued)

BASIS OF PRESENTATTION (Continued)

Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as

follows:

Unrestricted net assets are those whose use is not subject to any donor
imposed restrictions. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use
has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be
maintained in perpetuity. Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudsecn Valley, Inc.
does not have any permanently restricted net assets.

The accompanying schedule of Federal and State/Local Awards Expended includes
the grant activity of Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson valley, Inc. and
is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with reguirements of OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Nen-Profit Organizations.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America reguires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

CASH AND CASH FEQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the statement of cash flows the organization considers all
unrestricted highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalernts.

SUBPORT AND REVENUE

Unconditicnal support and revenue, including promises to give cash and other
assets, are reported at fair value at the date the contribution is received. 1In
addicion, all amounts are considered available Ffor unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Grants and other contributions are reported
as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with
donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
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Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson valley, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued})

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

ADVERTTISING AND PROMOTION

The Organizaticon uses advertising to promote its programs among the population it
serves. The c¢osts of advertising are expensed as incurred. During 2008
advertising and promotion costs totaled 5134,746.

CHARITY CARE

The Organization has a policy of providing charity care to patients who are unable
to pay. Such patients are identified based on financial information obtained Fram
the patient and subsequent analysis. Since the Organizatien does not expect
payment, estimated charges for charity care are not included in revenue.

FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized
on a functional basis. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services based on their estimated benefit in reasonable
ratios determined by management. ' '

INVESTMENTS

Investments are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices in accordance
with SFas 124, Accounting for Certain Investments held by Not-for-Profit
Organizations. Investments received as a gift are recorded at fair value on the

date of the contribution,

RECETVABLES

The Organization provides for bad debts using the reserve method; however,
receivables are already shown at their net realizable value after any necessary

writeoffs. Management has determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts is
necessary as of December 31, 2008.

INVENTORIES

Inventories of supplies are valued at the lower of cost or market on the first-in,
first-out basis.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Fixed assets are stated at cost, if purchased, or, in the case of donated assets,
falr market value at the date of receipt. Acquisitions of property and eguipment
in excess of 51,000 are capitalized.
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Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued}

DEPRECIATION

The Organization provides for depreciation using the straight-line mekhod over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 10-40 years
Furniture and equipment 3-10 years

DONATED SERVICES

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with SFAS No. 116,
Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services {a)
create or enhance nonfinancial assets or {b) reguire specialized skills, are
performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the
Organization. Volunteers also provided fund-raising services throughout the year
that are not recognized as contributions in the financial statements since the
recognition criteria under S5FAS No. 116 were not met.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants and other contracts designated for use in specific activities
are recognized as revenue in unrestricted net assets when expenditures have been
incurred in compliance with the grantor's restrictions. Advances are received
under certain grant agreements to assist the organization in expenditures incurred
in the first several months of the grant period. Grants receivable are deemed to
be fully collectible by management.

NOTE 3 ~ ANNUITY RECEIVABLE

The Organization is the beneficiary of four life gift annuicy agreements., The
annuities are administered by Planned Parenthood Federation Of america.

NOTE 4 -~ INVESTMENTS

Investments are recorded at fair value based on avallable market prices as
required by SFAS No. 124, Accounting for Certain Investments held by Not-for-
Profit Organizations. Unrealized gains and losses are reported in the statement
of activities. The cost and market value of the investments at December 31, 2008

were as follows:

Market Unrealized
Cost Value Gain (Loss)

Brokerage Cash 4,308 4,308 e
Equity Securities 25,441 21,640 {3,801
Mutual Funds 1,127,964 Bl5,200 1312, 764}

Total 1,157,713 841,148 {316,565}
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NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS (continued)

buring 2008, the organization received a settlement from Prudential Life Insurance
Company from the stock sale for the group term life insurance on its employees.

Investment return is summarized as follows:

Interest and dividend income 116,912
Net realized gains {losses) {87, 869)
Net unrealized gains {losses) (316,565)

Total unrestricted investment income (287,522)

NOTE 5 ~ GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY PAYABLE

During April 2007, the Organization entered into an agreement with New York State
to repay §175,000 resulting from disallowed costs. At the signing of the
agreement, 558,334 was paid. The remaining 5116,666 will be paid in weekly
installments of $1,179.36 plus annual interest at 5% as follows from April 2008
to March 2010;:

2009 ' 58,333
2010 14,836
Total 73,1693

NOTE 6 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at
December 31, 2008:

Program Services 114,162
The 2002 Capital and Expansion Campaign 145,517
Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 250,679

Net assets released from restrictions due to program service were $3,643,257.
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Planned Parenthocd of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NQTE 7 - LEASE COMMITMENTS

The rent expense for 2008 was $137,408.

The future minimum annual rental commitments under current operating leases at
December 31, 2008 are as follows:

2009 91,231
2010 53,664
2011 49, 056
2012 28,616
2013 & thereafter 0
Total Minimum Lease Payments 222 567

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN

The Organization participates in the Planned Parenthood Federation of America
Defined Contribution Pension Plan. All emplovees who have attained age 21 and
have completed two yvears of consecutive service of at least 1,000 hours a year
are covered. The Organization contributes 5% for eligible emplovees. The pension
cost for 2008 amounted to $148,125 and is included in payrecll taxes and fringe
benefits, : C : : ' o

NOTE 9 - QTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Organization does not provide benefits to its retired employees. Retired
employees are eligible to purchase benefits under a COBRA program.

NOTE 10 - INSURANCE

The Organization participates with other affiliates in obtaining insurance
coverage through Planned Parenthood Federation of aAmerica. The 2008 expense is
as follows:

Malpractice 103,743
General liability 11,6486
115,389

NOTE 11 - CONCENTRATIONS QF CREDIT RISK

Finaneial instruments which potentially subject Planned Parenthood of the Mid-
Hudson Valley, Inc. to a concentration of credit risk are cash accounts with major
financial institutions in excess of FDIC insurance limits. These financial
institutions have strong credit ratings and management believes that credit risk
related to these accounts 1s minimal.
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NOTE 12 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a 351,000,000 line of credit as of December 31, 2008 with
annual interest at prime plus %%. The line is collateralized by first position
on all assets of the organization. As of December 31, 2008 there was no amcount

outstanding.

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

Financial awards from federal and state governmental entities are subject to
special audit. Such audits could result in claims against the organization for
disallowed costs or noncompliance with restrictions.

NOTE 14 - CONCENTRATIONS OF REVENUE

The Organization grants c¢redit without c¢ollateral to their patients. The
percentage mix of patient fee revenue for 2008 was as follows:

Medicaid 43.35

‘Cther third party payors 18.23

Patients = 38.42
Total 100.00%

NOTE 15 - CURRENT VULNERABILITY DUE TQ CERTATN CONCENTRATIONS

The Organization receives a substantial amocunt of its support form governmental
agencies. A significant reduction in the level of this support, if this were to
occur, may have an effect on the programs and activities.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Planned Parenthood of the
Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.

We have audited the financial statements of Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson
Valley, Inc. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, and have issued our
report thereon dated June 3, 2009, We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we congidered Planned Parenthood of the Mid-
Hudson Valley, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley Inc.’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal contrel over financial reperting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of contrel deficiencies, that
adversely affects the organization's ability to initiate, authorize, record,
process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, such that there is more than a remcte likelihood that a
misstatement of the organization’s financial statements Lhat is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the organizations‘s internal

control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the
organization’'s internal contrel.

80 Washington Street, Suite 202
Poughkeapste, NY 12601

(845) 485-6200

(845) 485-6400
dbb@dbbcpas.com
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The Board of Directors
Planned Parenthood of the
Mid-Hudson valley, Inc.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting - continued

flur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the firgt paragraph of this section and would not necesgarily
identify all deficiencies 1in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and (Qther Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Planned Parenthood of the
Mid-Hudson valley, Inc.’s financial statements are free of material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of Planned
Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc. in a separate letter dated June 3, 2009

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the
Finance Committee, Board of Directors, others within the entity, and federal and

state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Bailey Browne CPA & Associates

Bailey Boosne CAL & Braaciates

June 3, 2009
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Board of Directors
Planned Parenthood of the
Mid-Hudson valley, Inc.

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson valley,
Inc. with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.5. 0Office of
Management and Budget {OMB} Circular A-133 Compliance Supplament that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2008, Planned Parentheod of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.'‘s major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditor‘s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley,
Inc.'s management. Our respensibility is to express an opinion on Planned
Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Vvalley, Inc.'s compliance based on our audit. '

wWe conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMRB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance regquirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, 1Inc.'s compliance with those
requirements and perfeorming such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our
opinion. ©Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Planned Parenthood
of the Mid-Hudson valley, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc., complied, in all
material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to
each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2008.

80 Washington Street, Sulte 202
Poughkeepsie, NY 12601
(845) 485-6200

(845) 485-6400
dbb@dbbcpas.com
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The Board of Directors
Planned Parenthood of the
Mid~Hudson valley, Inc.

Internal Contrecl Over Compliance

The management of Planned Parentheood of the Mid~Hudson valley, Inc. is respensible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal contrel over compliance with
the requirements of laws, regulaticons, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Planned Parenthood
of the WMid-Hudson Valley, 1Inc.'s internal control over compliance with
reguirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Planned Parenthood of the
Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.'s internal control over compliance,

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when
the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer
a federal program such that there 1s more than a remote likelihood rthat
noncompliance with a type of compliance reguirement of a federal program that is
more than inconsequential will net bée preévented or detected by the entity’s
internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of deficiencies,
that results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance reguirement of a federal program will not be prevented or
detected by the entity’s internal control.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as

defined above.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the
Finance Committee, Board of Directors, others within the entity, and federal and

state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Bailey Brawne CPA & Associates

Buitsy Broine CIR & Broociates

June 3, 2009
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Planned pParenthood of the Mid-Hudson valley, Inc.
Schedule of Findings And Questioned Costs

Year Ended December 31,

2008

SECTION I--SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?
Reportable conditions that are not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal and State Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are reguired
to be reperted in accordance with section
510{a) of Circular A-1337

Major programs:

CEFDA Number

93.217

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Response

Ungualified

No

No

None

Ungualified

Name of Federal Pro¢gram

Family Planning

$300, 000

Yes



bPlanned Parenthoed of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2008

SECTION II--FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None noted during audit that are required to be reported.

SECTION ITII--FEDERAL AND STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None noted during audit that are required to be reported.

SECTION IV~--STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

There were no findings in prior audit
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DEPARTURES FROM SPECIFIC APPRAISAL GUIDELINES - DEPARTURES
FROM SPECIFIC GUIDELINES OF THE USPAP: THE RESTRICTED USE
APPRAISAL REPORT SHOULD CONTAIN A BRIEF STATEMENT OF
INFORMATION SIGNIFICANT TO THE SOLUTION OF THE APPRAISAL
PROBLEM. STANDARD RULES 2-2€(VII) AND 8-2€(VII) REQUIRE A
STATEMENT ON THE EXTENT OF THE PROCESS OF COLLECTING,
CONFIRMING, AND REPORTING DATA OR A REFERENCE TO AN
ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT RETAINED IN THE APPRAISER’S WORKFILE
THAT DECRIBES THE SCOPE OF THE WORK PERFORMED. THE READER OF
THE RESTRICTED USE APPRAISAL REPORT SHOULD NOT EXPECT TO FIND
ALL SIGNIFICANT DATA REPORTED.
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CERTIFICATION
I/We Certify that, 1o the best of our knowledge and belief:

Thomas H. Arra has inspected the subject property and has made the analysis,
opinions, and conclustons concerning the real estate contained in this Market Value
Analysis Report and concurs with the Final Market Value.

The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct,

The report analysis, opinions and conclusions are limited only by the reportcd
assumptions and limiting conditions, and are our unbiased professional analysis,
opinions and conclusions.

We have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this
report, and we have no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved.

The appraisal assigpnment was not based on a requested miniinum valuation, a specific
valuation or the approval of a loan,

Our compensation is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value or
direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value estimate,
the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event.

Our analysis, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been
prepared in accordance with the Codc of Professional Ethics of the National
Association of Master Appraisers and the Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice.

No one provided significant professional assistance to the persons signing this report.
As of the date of this report, Thomas H. Arra MRA has completed the continuing
education requirements of The State of New York, The Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice and the Appraisal Foundation,

That we are professionally competent to perform this appraisal assignment by virtue
of previous experience with similar assignments and or appropriate rescarch and

education regarding the specific property type and bcing appraised.

This appraisal and report conforms to the current Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice (USPAP) promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of the

Appraisal Foundation.
g%».l N, Oy, 1

Thomas H. Arra MRA 45000000071










CAPITALIZATION PROCESS

In the morigage equity method, we consider the following data appropriate:

Equity Yield Rate: An equity yield rate of 11% is considered appropriate. This rate takes
into consideration alternative investments available in the marketplace, as wel} as the risk
of the subject property given the current markct conditions.

Mortgage Interest Rate: 9%

Mortgage Term: 15 years
Loan Ratio: 70%
Period to hold 10 years
Calculations:
Mortgage Position: 70x.1217 = 0852
Equity Position: A0x .11 =.,0330
s
Less:
Equity Build-up x Sinking Fund Factor
(70x .5114) x .0598 =.,0214

Overall Capitalization Rate .0968




In order to convert the net operation income into value, direct capitalization has been
utilized. The formula utilized to do this is as follows:

Value = N.Q.I, / RATE

Therefore, the value of the subject property by the income approach is as follows:

Value = $25,887 /.0968
Equals $267,428
Rounded $267,400

Estimated Value by the income approach ~ $267,400







The Income Capitalization Approach

The income approach is a reliable method of valuation and has been given equal
consideration along with the sale comparison analysis in estimating the final value for the
subject,

The Sale Comparison Analysis and the Income Approach
As a test of the income approach, the sales comparison analysis was compieted,

The subject market area was searched for sales and leased properties that were similar to
the subject. There were limited sales and leases of recent data of this type in the past few
years. Three of the most recent sales were used with sales dating back to 2007, A
sampling of leases in the subject marketplace along with lease data from an expanded
radius was used in this report. Values in the subject marketplace have decreased as
evidenced by the statistical data and a review of the sales history and the sales data
available. Marketing times appear to be 12 or more months,

Investigation of market data utilized in the sales comparison and the income
capitalization approach consisted of a search of public records, local multiple listing
services, county records, other appraisers’ files, Realtors and municipal records.
Verification of data was made through a variely of sources: buyer, seller, Realtor,
attorney, assessor and appraiser, o

Afler establishing the potential income and expenses for the subject the income approach
value of $268,700 has been established. The value established after adjustments for the
differences in the sales comparison analysis is $263,120. The two approaches to value
have been given equal consideration in the final value estimate of $265,000.




DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE

"The definition of Market Value ae defined by the Financial

Inatitutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989

(FIRREA) .

b -

"The most probable price which a property should bring
in a competitive and open market under all conditions
requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each
acting prudently, and knowledgeably and assuming the
price is not affected by unduestimulus. Implicit in
this definition is the consummation of a sale as a
specified date and the passing of title from seller to
buyer under conditions whereby: =~ -

I.

if,

buyer and seller are motivated by self-interest;

both parties are well informed or well advised,

"and .acting in Wwhat -they consider their best

iii.

interests;

a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the
open market.

payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars
or in terms of financial arrangements comparable
thereto; and

the price represents the normal consideration for

the property so0ld unaffected by special or

creative financing or sales cpncessions granted
by anyone associated with the sale."

Fee §iméie [Estatgz

"Abgolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest
or .estate; subject only to the limitations of eminent

domain,

egcheat, police power and taxation.*®




HIGHEST AND BEST USE

This principle of real estate evaluation is defined as, "that
reasonable and probable use that will pupport the highest
present value, as defined, as of the effective date of the
appraisal. Alternatively, that use, from among reasonably
probable and legal alternative uses, found to be physically
possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible and
which results in highest land value.® 2

Certain criteria must be met in the economic analysis to
distinguish highest and best use. These are:

1. Legal Use:

Is it permissible, therefore possible?
2. Possible Use:

Is the site, or can it be, physically adapted?
3. Appropriate Use:

Are the neceasary supporting facilities available, such as
water, sewer, roads, and other supporting uses ?

4, Feasible Use:

Does it appear to make economic or financial sense for the
proposed use to be undertaken on the site at this time?

#Implied within these definitions is recognition. of the
contribution of that specific use to community environment or
to community develcpment geoals in addition to wealth
maximization of individual property owners." 2

The most profitable use among the competing alternatives, after
analyzing the impact upon the community environment, at the
date of valuation, ie the best estimate of the appraiser and
represents the highest and best use of the property. This use
is the result of careful analysis by the appraiger based upon
the facts present.

2

Byrl N. Boyce, Editor, Real Estate Appraisal Terminology
{(Magsachusetts: Ballinger Publishing Company, 1975). Page 1Q7.




THE APPRAISAL PROCESS

There are three basic analysis that are typlcally used by
appraisers when estimating market value - The Direct Sales
Comparison Analysis, The Gross Rent Multiplier Analysis (if

a residential property) or The Income Capitalization {(1f an
investment property), and The Cost Approach - Reproduction New.
Each provides data from three different sources (when available).

THE. DIRECT SALES COMPARISON ANALYSIS

The essential process of sales comparison analysis 1s to convert
verified sales prices of competitive and comparable properties to
a defined value estimate. It involves going to the market to
extract indication of defined value from market activities. Since
it is primarily an application of the principle of substitution,
the essence of the direct sales comparison analysis 1s to
discover the sales prices of competitive properties which sold
recently on the local market. Through an appropriate adjustment
process, this analysis is used to develop indications of what
competitive properties would sell for currently if they possessed
all of the basic and pertinent physical and esconomic
characteristics of the subject property. Indications of such
adjusted sales prices are developed for several comparable sales,
These indications are expected to fall into a pattern clustering
around one figure, which when appropriately rounded, provides an
indication of the market value of the subject property as of the
date of the appraisal.

THE GROSS RENT MULTIPLIER ANALYSIS

Gross rent multiplier analysis estimates value by multiplying the
gross market rental of the property being appraised by a
multiplier developed from a number of actual sales transactions
for comparable properties. The application of gross rent
multiplier analysis requires three steps. The .first two involve
conslderable market analysis and data gathering. The first step
is to estimate the current monthly market rental of the subject
property. This is followed by calculation of the appropriate
gross rent multiplier from sales of comparable properties that
were rented at the time of the sale. The third and fipal step is
to multiply the market rental of the subject property by the
gross rent multiplier to obtain an estimate of market value of
the subject property.




THE APPRAISAL PROCESS

THE INCOME CAPITALIZATION ANARLYSIS

The net income from an investment property using a capitalization
rate which reflects the risk and life expectancy of the
investment. The result is an estimate of value based upon the
anticipated future cash flows.

THE COST APPROACH -~ REPRODUCTION COST NEW

The basic steps to the cost approach reproduction new are

first to estimate the value of the site by comparing it with
others in the area that have sold in the recent past as if it
were vacant and put to it's highest and best use. Second to
estimate the reproduction cost new of the improvements. Third
to estimate the accrued depreciation, physical, functional, and
external if any. Than by subtracting the accrued depreciation
from the estimated cost of the improvements new a depreciated
value is derived., The appraiser then must add the site
improvements and estimated land value to the depreciated value to
arrive at a final estimation via the cost approach.




DEFINITIONS

COST APPROACH

That approach in appraisal analysis which is based on the
proposition that the informed purchaser would pay no more than
the cost of producing a substitute property with the same utility
as the subject property. It is particularly applicable when the
property being appraised involves relatively new improvements
which represent the highest and best use of the land or when
relatively unigue or specialized improvements are located on the
gite and for which there exist no comparable properties on the

market.

DEPRECIATION

A loss of utility and hence value from any cause. An effect
caused by deterioration and/or cbaolescence, Deterioration or
physical depreclation is evidenced by wear and tear, decay, dry
rot, cracks, eacrustations, or structural defects. Obsolescence is
divisible into two parts, functional and economic. Functional
obsolescences may be due to poor plan, mechanical inadequacy or
everadegquacy due to size, style, age etc. It is evidenced by
conditions within the property. Economic cbsolescence is caused by
changes external to the property such as neighborhood
infiltrations of inharmonious groups or property used,

legislation, etc. It is also the actual decline in market value

of improvement to land from time of purchase to time of resale.

DETERIORATION

Impairment of condition; one of the causes of depreciation,
refecting the loss in value brought about by wear and tear,
disintegration, use in service, and the action of elements.

Rlso, synonymous with physical depreciation, which may be further
classified as curable or incurable depreciation.

ACCURED DEPRECIATION

The difference between reproduction cost new or replacement cost
new of the improvements and the present worth of those
improvements, both measured as of the date of appraisal. In
measuring accrued depreciation, the appraiser is interested in
identifying and measuring the loss in utllity experienced by the
subject structure in its present condition, as compared to the
utility it would have as a new improvemsnt representing the
highest and best use of the site, Accrued depreciation is
sometimes referred to as diminished utility.




DEFINITIONS

FUNCTIONAL OBSOLESCENCE

Impairment of functional capacity or efficency. Functicnal
obsblescence reflects the loss in value brought about by such
factors of overcapacity, lnadequacy, and changes in the art that
affect the property item itself or its relation with other items
comprising a larger property. The inability of a structure to
perform adequately the function for which it is currently
employed.

ECONOMIC ONSOLESCENCE

Impairment of desirability or useful life arising from factors
external to the property , such as economic forces or
environmental changes which affect supply/demand relationships in
the market. Loss in wvalue from physical deteriloration and
functional obsclescence, both of which are inherent in the
property. Alao referred to as Locational or Environmental
Obsolescence.

* Byrl N. Boyce, Real Estate Appraisal Terminology,
Revised Edition (Massachusetts: Ballinger Publishing Company,
1981)., Pages 3, 14, 63, 75, 77, 87.
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ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

Thig is a Surmary Appraisal Report which is intended to comply
with the reporting requirements set forth under Standard Rule 2~
2(b) of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice
for a Summary Appraisal.Report. As such, it might not include
full discussions of the data, reasoning, and analysis that were
used in the appraisal process to develop the appraiser‘s opinion
of value. , Supporting documentation concerning the data,
reasoning, and analysis is retained in the appraiser's file. The
information contained in this report is specific to the needs of
the client and for the intended use stated in this report. The
appralser isﬁpot responsible for unauthorized use of this report.

No responsibility is assumed for legal or title considerations.
Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unlessg
otherwise stated in this report.

The property is appraised free and clear of any or all liens and
encunbrances unless otherwise stated in this report.

Responsible ownership and competent property management are
assumed unless. otherwise stated in this report.

The information furnished by others is helieved to be reliable.
However, no warranty is given for its accuracy.

All engineering is assumed to be correot. Any plot plans and
illustrative material in this report ara included only to agsist
the reader in visualizing the praoperty.

It is asasumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions
of the property, subsoil, or structures that render it more or
less valuable. No respongibility is assumed for such conditions
or for arranging for engineering studies that may be recuired to
discover them.

It is assumed that there is full compliance with all applicable
federal, state and local environmental regulations and laws
unless otherwige stated in this report, .

It is assumed that all applicable zoning and use regulations and
restrictions have been complied with, unless a nonconformity has
been stated, defined, and considered in thie appralsal report.

It is assumed that all required 1licenses, certificates of
occupancy or other legislative or administrative authority from
any local, state, or national governmental or private entity or
organization have been or can be obtained br renewed for any use
on which the value estimates contained in this report are based.

Any sketch in this report may show approximate dimensions and is
included to assipt the reader in vipualizing the property. Maps
and exhibits found in this reéport are provided for reader
reference purposes only. No guarantee as to accuracy is expressed
or implied unleps otherwise stated in this report. No survey has
been made for the purpose of this report.
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14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

It is assumed that the utilization of the land and improvements
is within the boundaries or property linas of the property
described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless
otherwise stated in this report.

The appraiser is not qualified to detect hazardous waste and/or
toxic materials.‘ Any comment by the appraiser that might suggest
the possibility of the presence of such substances should not be
taken as confirmation of the presence of hazardous water and/or
toxic materials, Such determination would regquire investigation
by a qualified expert in the field of environmental assessment,
The presence of dubstance such as asbestos, urea-formaldehyde
foam insulation, or other potentially hazardous materials may
affect the value of the property, The appraiser's value estimate
is predicatad on the assumption that there ies no such material
on or in the property that would cause a loss in value unless
otherwise stated in this report. No responsibility is assumed for
any environmental conditions, or for any expertise or engineering
knowledge required to discover them, The appraiser's descriptions
and resulting comments are the regult of the routine observations
made during the appraisal process.

Unless otherwise stated in this report, the subject property is
appraised without a specific compliance survey having been
conducted to determine 1f the property is or is not in
conformance with the requirements of the BAmericans and
Disabilities Act. The presence of architectural and
communications barriers that are structural in nature that would
restrict access by disabled individuals may adversely affect the
property's value, marketability, or utility.

Any proposed imprdvements are assumed to be completed in a good
workmanlike manner in accordance with the submltted plang and
specifications.

The distribution, if any, of the total valuation in this report
between land and improvements applies only under the stated
program of utilization. The separate allocations for land and
buildings must not be used in conjunction with any other
appralsal and are invalid if so used,

Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with
it the right of publication. It may not be used for any purpose
by any person other than the party to whom it is addressed
without the written consent of the appraiser, and in any event,
only with proper written gqualification an only in its entirety.

Neither all nor any part of the contents* of this report
(especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of the
appraiser, or the firm with which the appraiser 1s connected)
shall be disseminated to the public through advertising, public
relations, news sales, or other media without prior written
consent and appralsal of the appraiser,







AFFILIATIONS

President: T. Arra Appraisal Company

Board of Direetors Ulster County Multiple Listing Service
(former Vice President, former Treasurer)

Realtor Member: Ulster County Board of Realtors
Member: Ulster County Multiple Listing Service

Member: Mid-Hudson Multiple Listing Service

Member: National Association of Realtors

Member: State Association of Realtors

Member; National Association Master of Masler Appraisers
Designated (MRA)

Veterans Administration approved appraiser

FHA approved appraiser

EXPERIENCE

Completed over one millon doilars in Real Estate
transactions per year as a Realtor Associate 1979-1984

As a Real Estate Appraiser, completed single-family
(Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae), Multi-Family (FHLMC), and
2055, 2065, and Employee Relocation (ERC) appraisals

The above is a synopsis of my professional credentials, affiliations
and experience pertaining to the fields of: Appraisal, Residential
Real Estate and Commercial Investment, Additional details available
upon request.

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY
Realtor Associate: Century 21 - Arra Realty,
1979 to 1984, P.O. Box 132, Stone Ridge, New York,
12484.

Appraiser: Iudson Valley Appraisal Company,
1984 to 1987. Main Street, Kingston New York 12401

President: T. Arra Appraisal Company - 4/87 to present.
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CERTIFICATION
I/We Certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief:

Thomas H. Asra has inspected the subject property and has made the analysis,
opinions, and conclusions concerning the rcal estate contained in this Market Value
Analysis Report and concurs with the Final Market Value,

The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct,

The report analysis, opinions and conclusions are limited only by the reported
assumptions and limiting conditions, and are our unbiased professional analysis,
opinions and conclusions.

We have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this
report, and we have no personal interest or bias with respect to the parties involved.

The appraisal assignment was not based on a requested minimum valuation, a specific
valuation or the approval of a loan.

Our compensation is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value or
direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the amount of the value estimate,
the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a subsequent event,

Our analysis, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been
prepared in accordance with the Code of Professional Ethics of the National
Association of Master Appraisers and thc Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice.

No one provided significant professional assistance 1o the persons signing this report,
As of the date of this report, Thomas H. Aira MRA has completed the continuing
education requirements of The State of New York, The Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice and the Appraisal Foundation,

That we are professionally competent to perform this appraisal assignment by virtue
of previous experience with similar assignments and or appropriate research and

education regarding the specifie property type and being appraised.

This appraisal and report conforms to the cutrent Uniform Standards of Professional
Appraisal Practice (USPAP) promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of the

Appraisal Foundation.
%"N “t O‘N\ RE

Thomas H. Arra MRA 45000000071










DEPARTURES FROM SPECIFIC APPRAISAL GUIDELINES - DEPARTURES
FROM SPECIFIC GUIDELINES OF THE USPAP; THE RESTRICTED USE
APPRAISAL REPORT SHOULD CONTAIN A BRIEF STATEMENT OF
INFORMATION SIGNIFICANT TO THE SOLUTION OF THE APPRAISAL
PROBLEM. STANDARD RULES 2-2@(VII) AND 8-2©(VII) REQUIRE A
STATEMENT ON THE EXTENT OF THE PROCESS OF COLLECTING,
CONFIRMING, AND REPORTING DATA OR A REFERENCE TO AN
ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT RETAINED IN THE APPRAISER’S WORKFILE
THAT DECRIBES THE SCOPE OF THE WORK PERFORMED. THE READER OF
THE RESTRICTED USE APPRAISAL REPORT SHOULD NOT EXPECT TO FIND
ALL SIGNIFICANT DATA REPORTED.







CAPITALIZATION PROCESS

In the mortgage equity method, we consider the following data appropriate;
Equity Yield Rate: An equity yield rate of 11% is considered appropriate, This rate takes
into consideration alternative investments available in the marketplace, as well as the risk

of the subject property given the current market conditions.

Mortgage Interest Rate: 9%

Mortgage Term: 15 years

Loan Ratio: 70%

Period to hold 10 years

Calculations:
Mortgage Position: 70x%x.1217= 0852
Equity Position: 30x .11 =.0330

T2
Less:
Equity Build-up x Sinking Fund Factor
(70x.5114) x 0598 =.0214

Overall Capitalization Rate .0968




In order to convert the net operation income into value, direct capitalization has been
utilized. The formula utilized to do this is as follows:

Value =N.O.I. / RATE

Therefore, the value of the subject property by the income approach is as follows:

&

Value = $35,747/ .0968
Equals  $369,287
Rounded $369,287

Estimated Value by the income approach $369,287







The Income Capitalization Approach

The income approach is a reliable method of valuation and has been given equal
consideration along with the sales comparison analysis in estimating the final value for

the subject.
The Sale Comparison Analysis and the Income Approach
As a test of the income approach, the sales comparison analysis was completed.

The subject market area was searched for sales and leased properties that were similar to
the subject. There were limited sales and ieases available of this type in the past few
years. Three of the most recent sales were used with sales dating back to 2007, A
sampling of leases in the subject marketplace along with lease data from an expanded
radius was used in this report. Values in the subject marketplace have decreased as
evidenced by the statistical data and a review of the sales history and the sales data
available, Marketing times appear to be 12 or more months.

Investigation of market data utilized in the sales comparison and the income
capitalization approach consisted of a search of public records, local multiple listing
serviees, county records, other appraisers’ files, Realtors and municipal records.
Verification of data was made through a variety of sources: buyer, scller, Realtor,
attorney, assessor and appraiser.

After establishing the potential income and expenses for the subject the income approach
value of $369,287 has been established. The value established after adjustments for the
differences in the sales comparison analysis is $375,500. The two approaches to value
have been given equal consideration in the final value estimate of $375,000,



DEFINITION OF MARKBET VALUE

‘The definition of Market Value as defined by the Financial
Institutions'.Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989
(FIRREA) . b

"The most probable price which a property should bring
in a competitive and open market under all conditions
requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each
actlng prudently, and knowledgeably and assuming the
price is not affected by undue’ -stimulus. Implicit in
this definition is the consummat:.on of a sBale as a
spec¢ified date and ‘the passing of title from saeller to
'buyer under coriditionz whereby: ~ 7

I. buyer and seller are mdtivated‘by gelf-interest;

1i. both parties are well informed or well advised,
" and .acting in what they consider thelr besat
interests; .

iii. a reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the
open market.

iv. payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars
or in terms of financial arrangements comparable
thereto; ang

V. the pric¢e represents the normal consideration for
the property sold unaffected by special or
oreative financing or sales concessions granted
by anyone associated with the sale."

Fea Simgle (Estatez

nabgolute ownersh;p unencumbered.by'any'other 1nterest
or estate; subject only to the limitations of eminent
domain, escheat, police power and taxation.*
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ASBU@PTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS

This is a Summary Appraisal Report which is intended to comply
with the reporting requirements set forth under Standard Rule 2~
2(b} of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice
for a Summary Appraisal’ Report. As such, it might not include
full discussions of the data, reasoning, and analysis that were
used in the appraisal process to develop the appraiser‘s opinion
of wvalua, ., Supporting documentation concerning the data,
reasoning, and analysis is retained in the appraiser’s file. The
information contained in this report is specific¢ to the needs of
the client and for the intended use stated in this report. The
appraiser iEﬂpot responsible for unauthorized use of this report.

No responsibility is assumed for legal or title considerations.
Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable unless
otharwise stated in this report.

The property 1s appraised free and clear of any or all liens and
encumbrancea unless otherwige stated in this report.

Responsible ownership and competent property management are
assumed unlaes. otherwise stated in this report.

The information furmished by others is believed to be reliable.
However, no warranty ig given for ites acouracy,

All engineering is assumed to be correct. Any plot plans and
illustrative material in this report are included only to assist
the reader in visuwalizing the property.

It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions
of the property, subsoll, or structures that render it more or
less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such conditions
or for arranging for engineering studies that may be required to
discover them.

It is assumed that there is full compliance with all applicable
federal, state and local environméntal regulations and laws
unless otherwise stated in this report.

It is assumed that all applicable zoning and use regqulations and
restrictions have been complied with, unless a nonconformity has
been stated, defined, and considered in thic appraisal report.

It is assumed that all regquired licenses, certificates of
occupancy or other legislative or adminiatrative authority from
any local, state, or national govarnmental or private entity or
organization have been or can be obtained or renewed for any use
on which the value estimates contained in this roport are based.

Any sketch in this report may show approximate dimensions and is
included to assist the reader in visualizing the proporty. Maps
and exhibits Ffound in this report are provided for reader
reference purposes only. No guarantee as to accuracy is expressed
or implied unless otherwise stated in this report. No survay has
been made for the purpose of this report.
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17.

18.

It is assumed that the utilization of the land and improvements
is within the boundaries or proparty lines of the property
described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless
otherwise stated in this report.,

The appraiser is not ¢malified to detect hazardous waste and/or
toxic materials. Any comment by the appraiser that might suggest
the possibility of the presence of such substances should not be
taken as confirmation of the presence of hazardous water and/or
toxic materials. Such determination would require investigation
by a qualified expert in the field of environmental assessment,
The presence of substance such as asbestos, urea-formaldehyde
foam insulatien, or other potentially hazardous materials may
affect the value of the property. The appraiserfs value estimate
is predicatsd on the assumption that there is mno such material
on or in the property that would cause a logs in value unless
otherwise stated in this report. No responsibility is assumed for
any environmental conditions, or for any expertise or engineering
knowledge required to discover them. The appralser's descriptions
and resulting comments are the result of the routine observations
made during the appraisal process.

Unless otherwise stated in this report, the subject property is
appralsed without a specific compliance survey having been
conducted to determine if the property is or is not in
conformance with the requirements of the Americans and
Disabllities Act. The presence of archltectural and
communications barriers that are structural in nature that would
restrict access by disabled individuals may adversely affect the
property’'s value, marketability, or utility.

Any proposed improvements are assumed to be completed in a good
workmanlike manner in accordance with the submitted plans and
spacifications.

The distribution, if any, of the total valuation in this report
between land and improvements applies only uhder the stated
program of utilization. The separate allocations for land and
buildings mast not be used in conjunction with any other
appralsal and are invalid if so used.

Possession of this report, or a copy therecf, does not carry with
it the right of publication. It may not be used for any purpose
by any person other than the party to whom it ie addressed
without the written consent of the appraiser, and in any event,
only with proper written qualification an only in its entirety,

Neither all nor any part of the contentsof this report
{especially any conclusions as to value, the identity of the
appraiser, or the firm with which the appraiser is connected)
shall be disseminated to the public through advertising, public
relations, news sales, or other media without prior written
consent and appraisal of the appraiser.




HIGHEST AND BEST USE

This principle of real estate evaluation is defined as, "that
reasonable and probable use that will support the highest
present value, as defined, as of the effective date of the
appraisal, Alternatively, that use, from among reasonably
probable and legal alternative uses, found to be physically
possible, appropriately supported, financially feasible and
which results in higheet land value." 2

Certain criteria must be met in the economic analysis ta
distinguish highest and best use. These are:

1. Legal Use:

Is it permissible, therefore possible?
2, Possible Use:

Is the site, or can it be, physically adapted?
3. Appropriate Use:

Are the necessary supporting facilities available, such as
water, sewer, roads, and other supporting useas ?

4, Feasible Use:

Does it appear to make economic or financlal sense for the
proposed use to be undertaken on the site at this time?

“Implied within these definitions is recognition. of the
contribution of that specific use to community environment or
to community davelopment geoals in addition to wealth
maximization of individual property owners." 2

The most profitable use among the competing alternatives, after
analyzing the impact upon the community environment, at the
date of valuation, is the best estimate of the appraiser and
represents the highest and best use of the property. This use
is the result of careful analysis by the appraiser based upon
the facts present.

2

Byrl N. Boyce, Editor, Real Estate Appraisal Terminology
{Massachusetts: Ballinger Publishing Company, 1975). Page 107.




THE APPRAISAL PRGCESS

There are three basic analysis that are typically used by
appraisers when estimating market value - The Direct Sales
Comparison Analysis, The Gross Rent Multiplier Analysis (if

a residential property} or The Income Capitalization (if an
investment property}, and The Cost Approach - Reproduction New,
Bach provides data from three different sources {when available}.

THE DIRECT SALES COMPARISON ANALYSIS

The essential process of sales comparison analysis is to convert
verified sales prices of competitive and comparable properties to
a defined value estimate. It involves going to the markst to
extract indication of defined value from market activities, Since
it is primarily an application of the principle of substitution,
the assence of the direct sales comparison analysis is to
discover the sales prices of competitive properties which sold
recently on the local market. Through an appropriate adjustment
process, this analysis is used to develop indications of what
competitive properties would sell for currently if they possessed
all of the basic and pesrtinent physical and economic
characteristics of the subject property. Indications of such
adjusted sales prices are developed for several comparable sales.
These Iindications are expected to fall into a pattern clustering
around one figure, which when appropriately rounded, provides an
indication of the market value of the subject property as of the
date of the appraisal.

THE GROSS RENT MULTIPLIER ANALYSIS

Gross rent multiplier analysis estimates wvalue by multiplying the
gross market rental of the property being appraised by a
multiplier developed from a number of actual sales transactions
for comparable properties. The application of gross rent
multiplier analysis regquires three steps., The.first two involve
considerable market analysis and data gathering. The first step
is to estimate the current monthly market rental of the subject
property. This is followed by calculation of the appropriate
gross rent multiplier from sales of comparable properties that
were rented at the time of the sale. The third and final step is
to multiply the market rental of the subject property by the
gross rent multiplier to obtain an estimate of market value of
the subjsct property.



THE APPRAISAL PROCESS

THE INCOME CAPITALIZATION ANALYSIS

The net income from an investment property using a capitalization
rate which reflects the risk and life expectancy of the
investment. The result is an estimate of value based upon the
anticipated future cash flows.

THE COST AFPROARCH - REPRODUCTICN COST NEW

The basic steps to the cost approach reproduction new are

first to estimate the value of the site by comparing 1t with
others in the area that have sold in the recent past as if it
were vacant and put to it's highest and best use., Second to
estimate the reproduction cost new of the improvements. Third
to estimate the accrued depreciation, physical, functional, and
external if any. Than by subtracting the accrued depreciation
from the estimated cost of the improvements new a depreciated
value is derived. The appraiser then must add the site
improvements and estimated land value to the depreciated value to
arrive at a final estimation via the cost approach.




DEFINITIONS

COST APPROACH

That approach in appraisal analysis which is based on the
proposition that the informed purchaser would pay no more than
the cost of producing e substitute property with the same utility
as the subject property. It is particularly applicable when the
property being appraised involves relatively new improvements
which represent the highest and hest use of the land or when
relatively unigue or speclalized improvements are located on the
site and for which there exist no comparable properties on the

market.

DEPRECIATION

A loss of utility and hence value from any cause. An effect
caused by deterioration and/or obsolescence., Deterioration or
physical depreciation is evidenced by wear and tear, decay, dry
rot, cracks, eacrustations, or structural defects, Obsolescence is
divisible into two parts, functional and economic. Functional
obsolescences may be due to poor plan, mechanical inadequacy or
overadequacy due to size, style, age etc. It is evidenced by
conditions within the property. Economic cbsoclescence is caused by
changes external te the property such as neighborhoad
infiltrations of inharmonious groups or property used,

legislation, etc. It is also the actual decline in market wvalue
of improvement to land from time of purchase to time of resale.

DETERIORATION

Impairment of condition; one of the causes of depreciation,
refecting the loss in value brought about by wear and tear,
disintegration, use in service, and the action of elements.

Also, synonymous with physical depreciation, which may be further
classified as curable or incurable depreclation.

ACCURED DEFPRECIATION

The difference between reproduction cost new or replacement cost
new of the improvements and the present worth of those
improvements, both measured as ¢f the date of appraisal. In
measuring accrued depreciation, the appraiser is interested in
identifying and measuring the loss in utility experienced by the
subject structure in its present condition, as compared to the
utility it would have as a new improvement representing the
highest and best use of the site. Accrued depreciation is
sometimes referred to as diminished utility.




DEFINITIONS

FUNCTIONAL CBSOLESCENCE

Impairment of functional capacity or efficency. Functional
obsolescence reflects the loss in value brought about by such
factors of overcapacity, inadequacy, and changes in the art that
affect the property item itself or its relation with other items
comprising a larger property. The inability of a structure to
perform adequately the function for which it is currently
employed,

ECONOMIC ONSOLESCENCE

Impairment of desirability or useful life arising from factors
external to the property , such as economic forces or
environmental changes which affect supply/demand relationships in
the market. Loss in value from physical deterioration and
functional obsolescence, both of which are inherent in the
property. Also referred to as Locational or Environmental
Cbsolascence.

* Byrl N. Boyce, Real Estate Appraisal Terminology,
Revised Edition (Massachusetts: Ballinger Publishing Company,
1981). Pages 3, 14, 63, 75, 77, B87.







ATFILIATIONS

President: T. Arra Appraisal Company

Board of Directors Ulster County Muitiple Listing Service
(former Vice President, former Treasurer)

Realtor Member: Ulster County Board of Realtors
Member: Ulster County Multiple Listing Service

Member: Mid-Hudson Muitiple Listing Service

Member: National Association of Realtors

Member: State Association of Realtors

Member: National Association Master of Master Appraisers
Designated (MRA)

Veterans Administration approved appraiser

FHA approved appraiser

EXPERIENCE

Completed over one millon dollars in Real Estate
{ransactions per year as a Realtor Associate 1979-1984

As a Real Estate Appraiser, completed s'mgle-familly
(Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae), Multi-Family (FHLMC), and
2055, 2065, and Employee Relocation (ERC) appraisals

The above is a synopsis of my professional credentials, affiliations
and experience pertaining to the fields of: Appraisal, Residential
Real Esiate and Commercial Investment. Additional details available
upon request.

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY
Realtor Associate: Century 21 - Arra Realty,
1979 to 1984, P.O. Box 132, Stone Ridge, New York,
12484,

Appraiser; Hudson Valley Appraisal Company,
1984 to 1987. Main Street, Kingston New York 12401

President: T. Arra Appraisal Company - 4/87 to present.
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ATTACHMENT NO. 6

PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

ARCHITECTURAL ITEMS

1. Transmittal Letter to Mr. Thomas M. Jung, R.A.
2. Architect’s Letter of Certification

3. Architectural Narrative

4. Functional Space Program

5. Schematic Drawing
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PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The new 8,009 square foot extension clinic will consist of clinical and non-clinical areas. The non-
clinical area consists of waiting rooms, staff lounge, locker room, business offices and storage. The
waiting room will have an area for wheelchair, storage, as well as access to drinking water and
telephone. The clinical area will consist of five (5) exam rooms with a clear floor space no less than
80 square feet, two (2) procedure rooms with a clear floor space no less than 120 square feet and one
(1) ultrasound room. All exam, treatment and ultrasound rooms will contain a hand washing sink,
work counter and space for writing. There will also be access to clean storage, soiled holding, a clean
supply room, housekeeping and an additional storage closet. The clinical area will be monitored by
staff at nurse stations.

CONCLUSION
This project will enable PPMHYV to provide its extension clinic services to the local community
within improved facilities compliant with Article 28 of the New York Public Health Law.




RACHITELIURE

‘Mark

187 845 B76 8202
Suite 180 845 B76 8112 fax
Rhinebeck NY 12572 optirmusarchifecture.com PROGRAM

Planned Parenthood of Mid-Hudson Vailey

Spoclalty: Diagnostic & Treatment
Date: 02/18/10

Reception

Clinical Arcas

S¢ndT Arcas

Total Net Arca

Circulation, Walls, etc

Total

Qiy Length wWidth Typ SF Total SF Motes

Vestibule 1 9 9 5t

Waiting 1 29 26 754 754  Provide access to drinking water, telephone and wheefchair
storage

Sub Waiting 1 7 16 112 112

Toilets I ) 7 56 56

Toilets [ 9 7 63 63

Business Office/Recept 1 15 28 420 420

File Storage 1 14 19 266 266

Education Office | 6 12 72 72

Office(s) 2 7 56 112

Exam Room 2 l6 12 192 384 Provide a min clear {loor aren of 80 sq ft, handwashing
sink, counter and writing shelf

[xam Roam 3 17 12 264 612

Procedure Rooms 1 12 I8 216 216 Provide a min clear floor area of 120 sq ft, handwashing
sink, counter and writing shelf’

1 {1 18 98 198

Ultrasound Room l 16 10 60 160

Toilets | L] 6 48 48

Toilets 1 7 7 49 49

Nurse Station 1 17 8 136 136 Provide a work counter, supply storage and charting
provisions

Nurse Station 1 6 9 54 34

Clean Storage 1 8 9 72 72

Soiled Holding 1 3 9 72 72

Clean Storage | 6 ] 96 96

Soiled Holding 1 6 6 96 96

Lab 1 6 12192 192

Clean Supply | 12 1120 120

Closet 1 4 6 24 24

Patient Changing | 25 27 675 675  (8) patient arcas. Provided with a nourishment counter and
drug distribution station including counter, sink, fridge and
locked storage

Consult | 14 g 112 112

Consuit 1 17 8 136 136

Office 1 7 7 49 49

Staff Lounge I 17 12 204 204 Serves as multi-purpose room

Locker Room i 17 132 221 221

Staff Toilet i 9 6 34 54

Gas i 12 4 48 48

Mechanical 1 16 B 128 128

Housekeeping I 20 7140 144

Server Room I 8 8 64 64

Storage I 5 8 40 40

6,336 nsf
1,673 usf

8,009 sq It

1of 1



ATTACHMENT NO. 7

PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

SITE CONTROL DOCUMENTATION

1.

Lease Agreement, Landlord’s Rider to Lease and Tenant’s Rider
to Lease

First Amendment to Lease Agreement
Documentation of Rent Reasonableness

Arm’s-Length Affidavit
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demised premises forms a part, or on property located therein, over that in effect at the commencement
of this lease. I{'by reason of the failure of the Tenant to comply with the provisions of this paragraph,
including, but not limted to, the mere use to which the Tenant puts the premises, the fire insurance rate,
shal} at anytime after the beginaing of this lease be higher, that it otherwise would be, the Tenant shall
reimburse the Landlord as additional rent hereunder, for thar part of all fire insurance premiums therafter

w bl dineghly aza0dté
paid by the Landlord, which exceeds the normal and which shall have been cha:gcdfvm-o} such

faifure or use by the Tenant, and shall make such reimbursement upon the first dey of the month following
the outlay by the Landlord.
ARTICLE IT - TERM

Section 2.01 Term. The tem of this Lease (hereinafier the "Term™) shall be for & period

of s years fmmM, as hereinafier defined, and shall terminate at 11:59 P.M. local time

on BAT oty !mjua—'a,yxﬁ

ARTICLE ITY - RENT

Section 3.01 Rent. Tenant covenants and agrees to pay to Landiord for the use and occupancy of

the premises the Rent, hereby defined 2s the sum of the Minimum Annual Rent and Additional Rent, as
defined infra. Tenant’s obligation to pay Rent shall commence upon the Occupancy Date without the
requirement of any further act o; Notice from Landlord.

Section 3.01.01 Minimum Annusl Rent. Tenant hereby agrees that the Minimum Annual Rent
during the first year of the Lease Term shall be payable in twelve equal moarhly installments, The firgt
month's rent shall be paid ﬁpon execution of this lease agreement.

2 Tag Lamdlead dhadl provide Temun it
e S e ol e “Q\.avvx e, tesvaoace w or deawen ('?4*‘4’
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The rent shall be as follows:

- Loﬁ..ﬂ_}@(j«“

1% Year: )
g \pe’..fl 7 Aoy
2" Year: 3 See.
S CL@!“[ % C‘aﬁ)/\
3® Year: 8§ Cece. t:Ls:'ciE* Q’;E
A S Cee. e_,.d,w_:ssf JZZ%Z

S e Ste Eide
Section 3.01.02 AddmonaIRent Tenant shall pay to Landlord, monthly, as Additional

Rent the following:

"CD{L"("QJJ PﬂDVL sl — See Lcamoffow ﬂ/m{w
(1) an-cmount which is the nreductofthemultiplieaton-of

( & chcmpf: i
ID

Section 3.02 Method and Tims of Rent Pavment. Except as otherwise set forth herein, Rent is
due in advance, on the first (1st) day of every calendar month during the Term at the office of Landlord,
or at such other place or address as Landlord may hereafter designate in writing. if an installmient of Rent
isnotreceived by Landlord By the date that is ten (10) days after the date on which such installmentis due,
then, in addition to such instaliment ’fenant shall also pay a [ate cherpe equal to five percent (5%) of such
installment. If any check delivered to Landlord pursuant to the terms of this Lease shall be dishonored
by reason of insufficient or uncollected funds or for any other reaso ::;nipp

(1) Tenant shall pay to Landlord 2 service charge of § 108700 for each dishonored check.

No payment by Tenant or receipt by Landlord of a lesser amount then the Minimum Annual Rent

or Additional Rent herein stipulated shall be deemed to be other than on account of the Rent Due. Nor

shall any endorsement or staternent on any check or in any letter accompanying any check or payment s



Minimurn Annual Reat or Additional Rent be deemed in accord and satisfaction, and Landlard may accept

such payment or check without prejudice to Landlord’s right to recover the balance of such Minimum

Annnal Rent and Addiional Rent or to pursue any other remedy provided for by this Leas= ar by law. If
the Term shall commence or terminate on 2 day other than the first day or the last day (respectively) of
a month, then Rent for such partial month shall be prorated hased on a thirty day month.

Section 3.03. Hold Over Period. In the avent that Tenant does nat surrender al} of the demised

premises to Landlord upon the expiration or other termination of this lease, Tenant shali pay, asause and
. +eu

occnﬁpa.tfon ¢harge during each month of such “hold-over” period, an amount equal to one hundred &5

\te'lo _

(¥5€%) percent of one-twelfth (1/12) of the Minimnm Annual Rent and Additional Rent payable during

eften e

the immediately preceding twelve (12) manth period. Tenant shall make such payments, witheut notice
Q%:GDS demand therefor on the first day of each and every month duting such hold-over period. No
holding-aver by Tenant after the expiration of the term of'this Lease shall be construed to extend the term
of thiy Lease. The receipt and acceptance by Landlord of all or any portion of the nse and occupancy
charge shall not be deemed & waiver or acceptance by Landlord of Tenant’s breach of its covenants and
agreements under this Lease or a waiver by Landlard of its right to institute summary holdover
proceedings agﬁnst Tenmt or a waiver by Landlord of'its right to enforce any Sf its rights or to pursue any
of its remedies against Tenant as providgd for under this Lease or under law. In addition, Tenant shell
indemnify and holder Landlord harmless from and against all claims, loss or Bability resulting from any
delay by Tenant in timely swrendering the demised pramises, inéluding, without limitation, any claims
made by any succeading tenant. |

Section 3.04. Security Denosited. That the Tenant has deposited with the Landlord the sum

specified below as security for the full and faithfid performance by the Tenant of all the terms, covenants

and conditions of this lease upon the Tenant's part to be performed, which said sum shall be returmed to

5
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the Tenant after the time fixed as the expiration of the term herein, provided the Tenant has fully and
faithfully carried out 2ll of the said terms, covenants, and conditions on the Tenant’s part to be performed
In the event of a bona fide sale, subject to this lease, the Landlord shall have the rght to transfer the
balance of the secunity, if any, for the benefit of the Tenant and the Fandlord shall be considered released
by the Tenant from all liability for the returm of such securityfnd it is agreed that this shall apply to every
transfer or assignment made of the security to a new Landlord. The security deposited under this lease

shall not be mortgaged, assigned or encumbered by the Tenant without the written consent of the

Lendlord, ¥ PEYE® neviding LT d b ot “f Pre

Secunity Amount: $ (deposited on prior lease)

ARTICLE IV - COMMON AREAS AND MINIMUM COMMON AREA CHARGES

Sectian 4.01. thmon eaMaintenance. Landlord shall beresponsible to pay for all common

area maintenance including but not lmited to smow plowing, lawn maintenance, and parking l’ot
mainte:nancc) e L\..é.'f.-»g Lo Sk‘\’(y‘g

Section 4.05 Contro) of Common Areas, All Common Area and other facilities in or about the

Shopping Center provided by Landlord shall be subject to the exclusive confrol and management of

Landlord and except as otherwise sct forth shall be maintained by Landlord. Landlord shall have the right

to constnict, maintain end operats lighting and other facilities on all said areas and improvernents o police




LY Bl & HabhULL L

(cafﬂm‘}“bf
use-oftheparking facilities. Landlor &h(loperate and maintain the common facilities in such maoner

as Landlord in its discration shali’determine. All Common Areas and facilities which Tenant may be
permitted to use and occupy are to be used and occupied under a license which shall forthwith terminaie
upon termination of this Lease {or any reason.

ARTICLE V- TAXES SEE RIDEIT

Section 5.01. Taxes Defined. Landlord shall, in all instances, pay or cause to be paid all “Real

anthorifies as to the same to the extent that such confegt result in a reduction of Tenant’s taxes. If af any

time during the term of lease, under the laws of the State oxany political subdivision thereofin which the

Shopping Center is situated, a tax or excise on rents or other however described, is levied or agsessed

by said State or palitical subdivision 2gainst the Landlord or the ba¥jc rent expressly reserved hereunder,

as 2 substitute in whole or in part for taxes assessed or imposed by said\State or political subdivision en
§ SHM he Prouy ed' W\t"ﬁ/} '

Iand and/or buildings, the Tenarlt covenants to pay and discharge such tax Skgxcise on rents or other tax

but only to the extent of the amount thereof which is lawfully assessed or imposedupon the Landlord and

which wes 30 2ssessed or imposed as & ditect result of the Landlord’s ownership of the'demised premises,

OQ/QLQC; M/h/&lf 14 Cﬂ/t TE nog r\‘:{{l Q.1 o1, NC{;' SO e ‘
by ' '



or of this lease or of the rentals accruing under this Jease, it being the intention of the partizs hereto that

the basic rent to be paid hereunder shall be paid to the Landlord absolutely net without deduction of any

nature whatsoever, except as in this leese otherwise expressly provided, The payment to be made by the

“Imposition™ as de

Hraes Vs
Sectian 5.02,

ed in this article. /Jr S\-bMW\-uvtL»l JLrL’L CLV@ ”‘{

~r—eved Ae

thod and Time of Payment. enant shall pay to the Landlord 25 a portion of
% Bese. Yepa

the Additional Rent %% c»f vy increase of such taxes and/or Impositions over the 258k=-Gay=Fpx-end

g'\"ﬁc. CELLH-*— -rﬂu..m C—| 4 ~ ‘Mﬂ'\e Q-.df/a

=6086/84 School Taxcs attributable to the Shopping Center computed ashereafierprevided. The aggregate

taxes and/or Impositions attributable to the land, buildings, structures and other improvements in the
$2

Shopping Ceater shall be muitiplied by Tenant’s Percentage. Tenant’s percentage shall be % of such

taxes. The additional rent herein provided shall be paid in monthly instsllments, based upon the prier

calendar year tax bills or subsequent assessments by change in tax rate in the same manner as the Common

Area Charges designated in Article 4 above. A bill submitted by Landlord to Tenant shall be

conclusive evidence of the amount of taxes eassessed or levied as well as the itemns taxed. Tenant at all
ames shall be responsible for and shall pay, before delinquéncy, all municipal, county, state or federsl

of any kind owned, instalied or used
by Tenant. Landlord shall have the right, if permitied by law, to igake installment payments of any

assessments levied against the Shopping Center, and in such event TenanY!s pro rata share shall be basad

upon the installment and interest thereon paid by Landlord in each lease yedr. Landlord shall have the

sole, absolute and unrestricted right to settle any contest, proceeding or actioh upon whatever terms

ropndiie-

I endlord may, in its sole®discretion, determine. In the event of any refund of , Landiord shall,

‘provided Tenant is not then in defanlt of monthly payments of Rent or Additional t, remit such

|

I
‘u\!\i

th
¥
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proportion of the refund as sh:D“hﬁ allocable t6 payments of taxes actusily made by Tenant, less costs,

Ytied gl
axpenses and Fﬂomeys ees incwrred in o

ining such refund. This provision shall survive termination

d impositions are insufficient to make any

wa e
tax payment whes due, Tenant shall, immediately upon demand, pay su

of this lease. In the event the monthly installments of
t as will provide
Landlord with the full amount of Tenant’s proportionate share of such tax.
ARTICLE V] - CONDITION OF THE PREMISES
Section 6.01 Condition. Except as exprassly provided in this Agresment, Tenant agrees to accept

<k .
the premises "AS IS" and warrants and represents to Landlord that the premises are in acceptable
condition. ¢ (22 of e dddre a{ ERaW }E-@ e ond The

i

’\deJfJ ..cl'm.ﬂe. LDC-.‘. {fv ’fht L@ 2 cam..dfa‘r’aw O N

ARTICLE VII - REPAIRS, ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS The Pote

Te ~cr =T

M ooe & 1,

Section 7.01, Repairg and Maintenance. Landlord sha.l} be responsﬂ)la for all maintenance and

repairs to roof, structure, (excluding plate glass windows) and cotnmon areas, including the parking lot. A [l

Sectian 7.02. Construction of Improvements. Tenant shall have the right during the Term, at

its own cost and expense, to reconfigure, alter, rafit or improve, the Premises, including, without
limitation, signs orsignage upoﬁ the Premises, provided Tenant obtains Landlord’s prior written approval,
subject to the provisions of this sectmn w‘\ e [\ Q. /Mﬂ L Q,P £ L’ a,eﬁ !vo"f‘ /Dg,
e nee s o als |y bt b

Section 7.03 Compliance. Any removals, reconfiguration, alteration, refirting or :mpruvcments,
including, without limitation, signs or signage shall be in compliance w1th all building and zoning laws
and with all other laws, ordinances, orders, rules, regﬁlations and requirements of all federal, state and
municipal governments with jurisdiction over the Premises. Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense,
obtain all applicable pcrmits; and authorizations prior to commencing any such removals, reconfiguration,

alteration, refitting or improvements, Landlord shall cooperate with Tenant for Tenant to obtain any

nécessary permits or authorizations.
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Section 7.04 Liens. Any alterations or construction performed by Tenant shall be the obligation
of, and paid for by, Tenant so that the Premises shall at all times be free of liens, except as herein
provided. Should any lien be filed 2s a result of alterations er construetion performed by Tenant, Te:n?mt

| ity (60) | |
agrees either {o cause the same to be removed within twept-£20) days after the date of filing, or furnish
Landlord with 2 surety bond securing Landlord against any payment which may thereafter be required to
be paid in order to have such Jien canceled or discharged of record. Any such bond shall be in the amount
of one hundred Kveﬁéfglt—“f;gégjpcrcen’c of the amount of the lien, which the parties hereby agree to be a
reasonable amount in excess of the lien, required 1o cover the interest and other anticipated costs and

expenses which may be incurred in connection with the cancellation and discherge on any such lien.

Section 7.05 Title fo Improvements. The parties agree that during the Term, and until the

expiration or termination thereof, Tenant shall have title to 211 alterations or impravements constructed

by Tenant on the Premises. Atthe expiration or termination of this Leasge or any renewals thereof, Tenant

rsduime s
shall have the option or right 1o remave all property gf Tenant and all additions or imprmvements mads

by Tenant, repair all damage to the Premises cansed by such removal and restore the Premises to auseable

Sosdiunes

condition. Any proparty or improvement not so removed shall be deemed to automatically pass

Landlord, and

ARTICLE VIH - SUBORDINATION, NON-DISTURBANCE AND NON-SUBORDINATION

10
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Section 8.01 Subardinatign. This Lease is subject and subordinate to all ground or underjying

leases and fo all mortgages which may naw or hereafter affect such leases or the real property of which
the Leased Premises area part and to all renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacements and
extensions of eny such underlying leases and martgages. This clanse shall be self-operstive and no further
instrument of subordination shall be requirzd by any sreund or underlying leasee or by any morigagee,
affecting any lease or the real propery of which the Leased Premises are a part. Tenant shell execute
promptly any certificate that Landlord may request to confirm such subordination. The tem
“mortgage(s)” as vsed herein shall be deemed to include trust indcntunc(sj, deed(g) of trust, and security
deed(s). Tenant agreas to attorn to any morigagee who shall suceeed to Landlord’s interest in this Lease
upon request of such mortgagee.

Notwithstanding the dbove, if any mortgages requires that this Lease be prior rather than
subordinate to any such mortgage, T enant shall, promptly upon request therefor by Landlord or such
mortgagee, and without charge therefor, execute a document effecting and/or acknowledging such priority,
which document shall contain, af the option of such mortgag;c,' an attarmmment obligation to the mortgagee
as landlord in the event of foreclosure or to any party acquiring title through such mortgages in such event.

Section 8.02 Non-Subardination of Fee Interest. Notwithstanding any other provision
of this Lease, Tcmmt‘ shall not have the power or right to subject Landlord’s title or interzst in or to the
Premises to any mechanics or materialman's lien, nor shall any provision of this Lease ba construed so

as to permit Tenant to encumber the title or interest of Landiord for or on account of any improvement

made by Tenant or anyone claiming by, through or under Tenant.

ARTICLETX - INSTRANCE — S e (2 dpg




extended coverage insurance covering Tenant's contents of the premises, against loss or damage in an
amount'rot [ess than the replacement cost thereof, incInding plate glass insurance coverage.
Sectionr9.02 General Liability Ingurance. Tenant covenants, at the Commencerfient Date and
thereafter throughou el Term, at its sole cost and expense, to carTy and mainfain mprehens.ive public
ligbility insurance, includindyroperty damage, insuring Landlord and Tenap#against liability for injuries,
or death, to persons or property damage occwming in or about et Premises or ansing out of the
mainlenance, vse of occupancy thereaf, exvept for such damaget injury caused by Landlord*s negligence,
or willful act or omission. Tenant shall carry andwaintgifi such liability insurance coverage in the amount
of ONE MILLION and NO/100 DOLLARS (§ ,0, 0.00)‘combined single limit, or more, naming
Landlord its successors, and/or assigns.a ddditional insured)-gs its interests may appear.
Section 9.03 Certificates, P he insurance policies to be maintajned by Tenant pursuant to Sections
9.0} and 9.02 above shall be issued by reputable insurance companies dyly authorized to issue such
insurance in the State st New York. Such insurance pplicieé shall not be canceledenewed, or materially
altered unless tht insurance carriers issuing the same give Landlord at least thirty (30) diws’ prior written
notce theéreof. Tenant sthl'pmvide Landlord with a certificate or certificates evidencing the t¥spance of

he insurance policies to be maintained by Tenant pursuant to this Article IX.

ARTICLE X - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 10.01 Indemuification of Landlord. Tenant, on behalf of iiself, its agents, and

employees, agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Landlord, its successors and/or assigns from
and agamst any and all liahilities, obligations, claims, damages costs and expenses (including reasonable

attorney's fees) incurred by or asserted ageinst Landlord, its suceessors and/or assigns by reason of(a) any

12
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neglipence or willful act or omission on the part of Iandlerd or Esmiford’s agents or employees, or (b)
any failvre on the part of andierd to perform or comply with any of the terms of this Lease.
Vet

ARTICLE XI - UTILITIES

Section 11.01 Electricity.,

Tenant shall, at its own cost and expense:

() pay for al] separately metered electricity consumed by Tenant directly to the public utility
firnishing the same, (ii) provide and pay for all natural gas consumed by Tenant at the demised premises,
if any, directly to the Il:mblic utility furnishing the same;, (iii) provide and pay for its own garbage trash,
and/or mbhish pickup and disposal except that Tenant shall contract for such services with a cornpany
acceptable to Landlord, in the exercise of Landlord’s sound dﬁssretion; FURTHER PROVIDED
HOWEVER, that all receptacles and/or storage areas associated with .r;uch_ service must be placed in
locations, and be of a type and/or size reasonably acceptable to Landlord, in the exercise of the Landlord’s
sole and absolute discretion, (iv) Tenant shall pravide and pay for all interior cleaning services vtilized
to clean the demisad premises.

Tenant shall use reasonable diligence in the conservation of the foregoing utilities, and agrees that
it will not install eny equipment which will exceed or overload the capacity of any utilify fzcilities, and
that if any equipment installed by Tenant shall require additional utlity facilifies, the same shall be

installed ar Tenant's expense in accordance with plans and specifications to be approved in writing by

Landlord.

Section 11.02. Water Rent & Sewer Charges. If a separate weter meter be installed for the

demised premises, or any part therenf, the Tenant will keep the same in repair and pay the charges made

by the municipality or water supply company for or in respect to the consumption of water, as and when

13



bills therefor are rendered. If the demised premises, or any part thereof, be supplied with walcr through
ameter which supplies other premises, the Tenant will pay to the Landlord, as and when hills are rendered
therefor, the Tenant's percentage pari of all charges which the mumnicipality or water supply company shall
make for al} water consumed through floor area against all of the rentable floor area in the building which
shall have been ocenpied during the period of the respective charges, taking into account the periad that
each part of such area was occupied. Tenant agrees to pay as additional rent the Tenant’s percentage part,
determined as aforesaid, of the sewer rent or charge imposed or assessed upon the building of which the
premises are a part 50 long as the water usage of such other Tenant is solely for ordinary lavatary purposes.
Tenant's Percentage shall be 32%of such water/sewer bills.

Section 11.03 Landlord’s Right to Repair. Notwithstanding anything to the confrary contained
in this Lease, Landlord reserves the right to suspend or cause to be suspended, the service of any utility
or utilities or any services to be provided by Landlord under this Leasc when necessary by reason of
accident, cm:rgcn#y, or the making (bsr j'.aﬁdlnrd .orio.f.hers)' of repairs, alterations or impm;!mnents in the
demised premises, the Building or the Shopping Center, until such repairs, alterations or improvements
shall have been completed, and Landlord shall have no responsibility or lisbility of such suspension of
services, provided that Landlord proceeds with reesonable diligence to complete such repairs, alterations
or improvements and uses reasonable efforts to restore or causa such services to be restored as soon &s
Teasonably pfacticablc. The foregoing shall not be deemed to impose upon Landlord any obligation for

the furnishing of any service, utility, maintenance or repair other than as may be expressly set forth in this

Lease,

Section 11.04 Chanees in Equinment Required by Tenant’s Use. Tenant agrees that it shall

niot meke any electrica] installations, alterations; additions or changes to the electrical equipment or

applisnces in the demised premises without the prior writien consent of Landlord in each such instance.

14
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Tenant shall at ell times comply with the rules and regulations applicable fo the service, equipment, and
wiring requirements of Landlord and of the utility company supplying electricity to the Shopping Center,
except thosc alterations necessary for the initial occupancy of the leased premises. Tenant covenants and
agress that at all times its use of electricity will not exceed the capacity of existing feeders to the Building
or the risers or wiring installations therein and Tenant shall not use any electrical equipment which, in
YA

Landiord’s soigjud gment, will overload such installations or interfere with the use thereofby other tenants
in the Shopping Center. In the event that, in Landlord’s reasonable judgment, Tenant's electrical
requirements necessitate installation of any additional riser, risers or other proper and necessary equipment
or services, including additional ventilating or air conditioning, th= same shall be provided or instailed by
Landlord at Tenant's sole expense, which shall be chargeable and collectible 25 Additional Rent and paid
within fifteen (15) days after the readition to Tenant of a bill therefor. All tenant's electrical work shall
. comply with all relevant building codes, Landlord shall not be liahle in any way to Ténant for any failure
or defect in the supply or character of electric service fugﬁﬁed to the demised premises by reason of any
reguirement, act or omission of the utility company servicing the Shopping Center or for any other reason
not directly attributable to the negligence of Landiord.

Section 11.05 Changes in Utility Service. If either the quantity or character of the electrical
service is changed by the utility company supplying :!cctri-cal service 1o the Shopping Center is no longer
available or suitable for Tenant's requirements, no such change, unavailability or unsuitability shall
constitute an actual or constructive eviction, in whole or in part, or entitle Tenant to any abatezﬁcnt or
diminution of mininmum ennual rent or Additional Rent, or relieve Tenant from any of its obligations under
this Lease or impose anyﬂ liability upon Landlord, or its agents, by reason of inconvenience of annoyance

to Tenant, or injury to or interruption of Tenant's business, or otherwise,

15
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ARTICLE XII - DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION

Section 12.01 Not Whelly Untenantable, Ifthe [mprovements are damaged by fire, the elements,

accident or other casualty (any of such causes being referred w0 herein as “Casnalty"), but the
| Improvements shall not thereby be rendered wholly or partially untenantable, Lﬁndlord shall with
reasonzble diligence after notice to him of the damage cause such damage to be repaired, and there shall
be no abatement of rent. If, as the r.esuh of a Casualty, the Improvements shall be rendered wholly
untenantable then, and farther subject to the provisions of Section 12,02, Landlord shall with reasonable
diligence after notice t6 him of the damage cause such damage to be repaired and, pravided such damage
| is not caused by the neplipence or willful act or omission of Tenant or its agents or employees, all rental
shall be abated proportionstaly es to the portion of the Improvements rendered untenantable during the
period of such ﬁntenantabiﬁty. All repeir obligations of Landlord pursuant to this Section shall be limitéd
to the extent of insurance proceads received. To the extent that Tenant shall choose to perform repairs
after a Casualty, as defined herein, it shall promptly notify Landlord of its intentions, shalt submit plans
for its proposed repairs for Landiords approval, which shall not bz unreasonsbly withheld, and shall in all
respects comply with the all building and zoning laws and with all other laws, ordinaﬁces, orders, rules,
regulations and requirements of all federal, state and municipal governments with jurisdiction over the
Premises. Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, obtain all applicable permits and anthorizations prior
to commencing any such repairs, Landlord shall reimburse Tenant from the proceeds of any such
~ insurapce rmv@, up 1o the actual_ and reasonable cost of such repairs, but not including the cost of any
applicable permits or quthorizations, shall remain the property of the Tenant,
12.02 Whally Untenantable, If, as the result of 2 Casualty, as defined herein, the Improvemnents
are (2) rendered wholly Untenantable, or (b) damaged or destroyed in who}e or in part during the Term

of this Lease, Tenant may elect 1o terminate this Lease by giving notice of such election to Landlord within

16



ninety (50) days after the occurrence of such Casualty. If such notice is given, the rights and obligations
of the parties shall cease as of the effective date of such termination notice, and rente] shall be adjusted
as oflthc date of such Casualty. Landlord shall not be liable for interruption to Tenant’s business. In the
event tenant shall elect not 1o terminate this lease, tenants f obligation to pay rfl:nt shal] abate

unti] such time as the premisas shall be restored to habitability.

ARTICLE XII] - CONDEMNATION

Section 13.01 Partial Faldng. If any part of the Premises shall be taken or condemned for any
public use by any legally constituted authority by right of eminent domain and a part thereof remains
which is suitable for Tenant's use, this Lease a3 ta the part to be taken shall terminate as of the date title
shall vest in the condemnor (or on such earlier date on which possession of ﬁhe Premises must be given
to the condemnor). If the aforementioned taking renders the rcmaindcf of the Premises wnsuitable for
Tenant's use, as determined within the reasonable discretion of them Tenant may terminate this
Lease ag of the date when Tepant determines that the Premises is unsuitable for Tenant's use by giving
notice to that effect within thirty (30) days aftertitle shall vest in the condernnor (or within 30 days of such
earlier date on which possession of the Préuﬁscs must be given to the condzmnor).

Section 13.02 Total Taking. If all or substantially all of the Premises are taken or condemned

or so much thereof that the use by Tenant shall be substantially impaired, this Lease shail terminate.
Notwithstanding the provisions herein, Tesnt shall have the right to make  separate claim with the
condemning authority for the value of Tenant’s trede fixtures and relocation expenses.

Section 13.03 Fully Informed. In the event of any teking, the parties agree to keep each other

fully informed conceming the progress ‘of the procesdings, and of any negotiatons in connection

17
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therewith. Both parties shall have the right, at their sole cost and expense, 1o participate in such
proceedings and negotiations and both parties, and their attomeys, shall consu_lt and cogperate with each
other in connection therewith, and furnish to each other copies of ail papers and documents served and
received in connection therewith. Both Landlord and Tenant shall have the nght, on written notice to the
other, to institute any action or proceeding, or if any action or proceeding is pending to intervene therein,
and to continue therewith fo obtain the largest award possible.

ARTICLE XTV - ASSIGNMENT AND SUBRLETTING

Section 14.01 Assignment and Subletting. Tenant shall not assign this Lease or sublet the

Premises in whale or in part without the express written consent of the Landlord, which shall not be

unreasonably withheld,
ARTICLE XV . FIXTURES AND TRADE FIXTURES

Section 15.01 Fixtures and Trade Fixtures. It is expréssly understood and agresd that any and

all signs, fixtures, trade fixtures, machinery, fencing, furniture, appliances, and equipment erected or
installed by Tenant, whether ar nat attached to the Premises (except as pmvidcd in Section 5.04), shell
remain the property of Tenant and may be removed by Tenant at or before the expiration of this Lzase and

any renewals thereof, including any period of any "holding over”, provided Tenant, in 2 good and

workmanlike manner, rcpm':é all damage which may be cansed by any such removal. Any-suchproperty

18
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ARTICLE XV] - DEFAULT

Section 16.01 Tenant’s Default, Tenant agraes that one or more of the following events shall be

considered "Events of Default” as said term is used herain:

(2) Tenant shall e adjudged an involuntary bankrupt, or a decree or order approving as
properly filed a petition or answer, filed against Tenant, asking for reorgzanization of Tenant inder the
Federal Bankruptey Law, as now existing or hereafter amended, or under the laws of any state, shall be

; :
: Nty (99)
entered and such decree or judgment or order shall not have been vacated or set aside within sty (667
days from the dete of the entry or granting thereof; or

(b) Tenant shall institute any proceeding, or give its consent to the institition of any
proceedings, for the relief of Tenant under any bankruptey or insolvency laws; or

(c) Tenant shall make any assignment for the benefit of creditors or shall apply for or
consent to the appointment of e receiver for Tenant; or

{d) Tenant shall default in any monthly payments of rent or in any other payi‘rﬁnt required

to be made by Tenant hereunder when due as herein provided and such default shall continue for the

days after Tenant receives written notics thereof; or

(¢) Tenant shall default in any of the other covenants and agreements herein contained to
be kept,'obsmred and performed by Tenant and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days after
Tenant receives written notice thereof, unless the defanlt’is of such nature that it cannot be cured within
such thirty (30) day iseriod, in which case no event of Default shall occur so long as Tenant shall
commence the curing of the default within such thirty (30) day period and shall therzafter diligently

prosecute the curing of same,

1%
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Section 16.02 Remedies Upon Default,

{2} Upor the occurrence of any ane or mare of such Events of Default, Landlord may
S Umimeiay 2 roCec dir

e Ce o

Co

(b} Landlord may ralet for a shorter or longer period of time than the Term and make any

necessary repairs or alterations, If Landlord relets for a period of time longer than the current Tenm, then
eny §pecial concessjons given to the new Tenant ghall be allacated throughout the entire reletting term to
not unduly reduce the amount of consideration received by Landlord during the remaining period of
Tenant’s Term.

TICL - ACCESS

Section 17.01 Access. Landlord (a) shall have access to the Premises for the purpose of maldng

maintenance and repairs as may be required pursuant 1o this Lease during normal business hours and upon
reasonable prior notice to Tenant for the purpase of inspection. Landlord shall have the right, on
reasonable notice to Tenant, to exhibit the Premisas to prospective tenants or purchasers therefor, and (b)
may at any time withiﬁ six (6) months prior to the expiration of the Term displayin s conspicubus place
on the Premises "Real Estate For ilen_t“ or &“Real Estate For Sele” signs, and Tenant agrees that no

employee or agent of Tenant will interfere with such signs when so placed. Landlord agrees that it shall

exercise its rights under this Section 17.01 so 8ot to-interfere with the operation of Tenant’s business
WSe lon it ..
on the Premises, - Qi MCLD\E{ Z-i\’ g'e_f{ &'c-c?m‘t«; o fwu.cfe
e ‘”{ o -«‘Q‘-Le.r—ue_ to
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Section 22,02 Governing Law. This Lease shall be govemed by, and construed in accordance

with, the laws of the State of New York

Section 22.03 Headings. Descriptive heedings are for convenience only and shall not control ar

affect the meaning or construction of any provision of this Lease,

Section 22.04 Successors and Aﬂ_qsigg‘ 8. This Lease shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of Landlord and Tenant and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors, and
assigns.

Secdon 22.05 Plurals: Gender. Whenever the context of this Lease shall so require, the singular
shall include the plural, the male gender shall include the female gender and the neutes, and vice versa,

Section 22.06 Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Lease shall
be held 1o be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unmforoeablc
shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this L’ease shall not affect any other provision hereof, and
this Lease shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been

contained herein unless to do so would maternally alter the benefits and burdens the parties hereto have

bargained for,

. s . - .. . .
Sectiog 22 e meisofthe assen sfotheprovisionsofthis Lazse: hawever i£ths date
e
—

for performance ;nf any provision of this Lease is a Saturday, Sunday,.oe-barkifig holiday in the State in
which the Premises are located, then the-daTor performance shfﬁi be extended uptil the next day that is
nob a Satm7s nday _or hanitne ho ‘_‘r'- afe to which the Premiges ara lacats

Section 22.08 Lease Submission. This Lease is submitted to Tenant for signature with the
understanding that it shall not bind Landlord unless and until it has been executed by Landlord and

delivered to Tenant.
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Section 22.09 Waiver of Redemption Rights. Tenant, for itself and on behalf of any and all
persons claiming through or under Tenant, including creditors of all kinds, does hereby waive and
surrender all right and privilege that they or any of them might have under or by reason of any present or

future law, to redeem the Premises or to have a continuance of this Lease for the Term after being

dispossessed or ejected therefrom by process of law or-unde

Section 22,10 Waiver of Jury Trial, Landlord and Tenant shall and hereby do waive tnial by jury

in any action, proceeding, or counterclaim brought by either against the other on any matter whatsosver
arising out of or in any way connected with this Lease, the relationship of Landlord or Tenant, Tenant’s
use or sccupency of the Premises, any claim of injury or damage, or any emergency stamtory or any other

statutory remedy.

Secetion 22.11. Attorney’s Fees. If the Tenant shall at any time be in default bereunder, and if

the Landlord shall institute an action or summary proceeding against the Tenant basedupon such default,

o R21t] oo [ﬁ, .
then the Tenant will reimburse the Landlord for the&xpense of attorney’s fees and dishursements thereby

Vo e eoeny The lawdlond shad ol iva-
incurred by the Landlord. Also so long s the Tenant shall be a tenant hereunder the amount of such

expenses shall be deemed to be “additicnal rent” hereunder and shall be due from the Tenant to the
Lendlord on the first day of the month following the ihcurring of such respective expenses,

Section 22.12. Passession. Landlord shall not be lable for failure to give possession of the f""
. f,«'

" premises upon commencement date by reason of the fact that premises are not ready for occupancy, or due !

to a prior Tenant wrongfully holding over or any other person wrongfully in possession or for any 9{5&1
. //’

-
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All fixed reat and additional rent (collectively hereinafter referred 1o as “rent") shall
be paid in such coin or currency (or, subject to collection, by good check payable in such coin or
currency) of the United States of America ax al the time shall be legal tender for the payment of

public and private debts, at the office of Landlord as set forth above, or at such place and to such
person ag Landlord from time o time may designate.

All rent shal} be paid to Landlord wilhout notice, demand, counterclaim, setoff,

deduction or defense, and nothing shall suspend, defer, diminish, abatc or reduce any rent, except
as otherwise specifically provided in this lessc.
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24. Real Estate Tax Escalations
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Tenant shall pay, during the term of this lease, the additional rent provided for in this
Article 24. As used herein, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

"Real Estatc Taxes" shall mean all real estate taxes, assessments, watcr charges and
sewer rents, and other taxes and charges of every nature and kind whatsoever,’
whether general or special, ordinary or extraordinary, foreseen or unforeseen, of
cvery chargeter, which at any time may be assessed, evied, charged, confirmed or
imposed on or in respect of or be a lien upon the building. "Real Estate Taxes” shall
exclude income, franchise, inheritance or similar taxes; provided, however, that if the
method of taxation or assessment shall be changed so that the whole or any part of
the Real Estate Taxes theretofore payable with raspect to the building instead shall -
be levied, charged, assessed or imposed in whole or in part on the incame or rents
received by Landlord from the building or shall otherwise be imposed against

l.andlord in the form of a franchise tax or otherwise, then the same shall be deemed
Real Estate Taxes for purposes of this Artiele 24,






Landlord shall not be obligated to contest the levy or assesstent of any Real Estate
Taxes, and it shal] be at Landlord's sole diserction whether any such contest shall be undertaken.
Landlord hercby reserves the exclusive right to take and prosecute all such proceedings, including
any such proceedings for the Base Year, and if so taken, Landlord may proceed without notice to
Tenant and may prosecute the proceeding, including setticment and discontinuance, in such manner
as Landlord may determine in its sole discretion.

In no event shall the annual {ixed rent under this lease be reduced by virtue of this
Article 24, .

The additional rent provided herein shall be apportioned as of the expiration of the
lease ttrm or earlier termination of this lease. The obligations of Tenant to pay additional rent as
provided for herein shall surviva the expiration of the Jease term or earlier termination ol this lease.

The additional rent provided for hersin shall be collectible hy Landiord in the same
manner as the repuiar installments of fixed rent due uader this lease. No delay or failure by Landiord
in preparing or delivering any siatement or demand for any additional rent shall constitute 2 waiver
af, or impair Landlord's rights 1o collect, such additional rent.

25. CPI Escalations
Tl

"Base Year" as used herein shall mean the lwelve month period ending on May31,
2010.

“Consumer Price Tndex" shall mean the Consumer Price Index published by the
Buraay of Lzhor Statistics of the U.5. Department of Labor, All Items, New York, New York -
Northeastern, N.J., for urban wage earners and elerical workers, or any suceessor or substitute index
appropnately adjusted.

"Consumer Price Index for the Base Yt:dr" shall mean the average of the Consumer
Price Index for cach of the vwelve months of the Base Year.
B o WY ‘
Effective as !a-aash January and Inly subscquent to the Base Year, butinncevent
scenerthanshv-menths aflerthe commencement-of-the-term-ofthislcase, a cost of living adjustment
shall be made to the annual fixed rent payable hereunder,

{the Consumer Price Index for any month of December within the term of this lease

Consumer Price Index for such month of December and the Consumer Price ndex for the Base Year.
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Said adjusted annua}ixed rent thersafierghall be payable Wﬁaﬁﬁm&\k
uan-AG this Artcic )

ungi! it is readjusted p

If the Consumer Price Index for any month of June within the term of this leage
reflects an increase over the Congumer Price Index for the Base Year, thcn thc annuai ﬁxed reat to

fixed rent theredftcp€hall be payable hcrcundcr, in cqual monthly insta!lmenrs: until it is readjusted
pursuant to this Article 25.

In no event shall the fixed rent under this lease be reduced by virtue of this Article
25

‘The obligations of Tenant to pay the additional rent provided for in this Article 25
shall survive the expiration of the lease term or earlier termination of this lease. The additional rent
provided for herein shall be apportioned a5 of the expiration of the lease term or earlier tenninaton
of this Jease.

26, Use of Demised Premlses

“enant covenants that Tenant shall use and oceupy the demised premises solely as
general offices’for the eonduct of Tenant's business, namely Planned Parenthood facility, and forno
other purpose unless approved in writing by Landlord. Said approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld.

Tenant shall not place a load upon any floor of the-demised premises which excecds
the Toad per square foot for which the floor was designed. All machines and equipment installed in
the demised premises shall be properly shiclded and so placed, equipped, installed and maintained
by Tenant so as to elintinate the wansmission ol notse, vibration ot clectricity or other interference
with other occupants of the building. Tenant shall not move any equipiment or bulky matier in or out
of the building without Landlord's prior written congent, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, and Tenant shall repair any damage caused by such movement at Tenant's expense.

27. Condifien of Premises

Tenant bag examined and inspected the demised premises. Tenant agrees to accept
possession of the demised premises "AS IS", excepl as exprassly provided herein, Landlord shall
not be responsible fur muking any improvements, alterations or repairs therein or for spending any
other money 1 prepare the demised premises for Tenant's occupancy, except as expressly provided
herein. In the cvent of substantial damage to the demised premises prior to the commencement of



the term of this lease and the taking of possession by Tenant, Landlord may efect either to repair the
demiscd premises to its present condition or to cancel this lease and refund to Tenant all monies paid
heretinder,

2R, Dtilitv Services

‘Tenant shall pay all charges for all public or private utility serviccs provided to the
demised premiscs, shall comply with all contracts relating to such services, and shall do all other
things required for the maintenance and continuance of all such services.

Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall make all arrangements with the public
utility company serving the demised premiscs for obtaining and paying for electricity at the demised
premises. Landiord shall not be liable or responsihle for charges for slectricity at the dernised
premises, or any loss, damage or expensc which Tenant may sustain or incur if either the quantity
or character of clectric service is changed or is no longer available or suitable for Tenant's
requirements.

Tenant covenants and agreces that its use of electric current shall never exceed the
capacity of the existing conductors, feeders, risers, wiring installations or other cquipment servicing
the building. Tenant shall not alter or make any addition to the clectrical equipment without the
prior written consent of Landlord. If Landlord grants such consent, all additional risers and other
cquipment shall be provided by Landlord, and the reasonable costs and cxpenses thersof shall be
paid by Tenant to Landlord on demand, as additional rent, without seloff or deduction.

landlord, at Landlord's expense, shall furmish to the demised p;cmiscs cold and
temperate air at reasonable temperatires, pressures and %c%grces of humidity and in reasonable
volumes and velocities, from 8:00 A M. to 6:00 P.M. on busifsssdayd from May 15th to September
30th, as required for the comfortable occupancy of the demised premises, —

‘T'enant shall cooperate ully with Landlord and shall abide by all rules and regulations
which Landlord rcasonably may prescrihe {or the proper functoning and protection of the l1IVAC
system. Tenant shall cause to be kept closed the doors, when not in use, and ail windows in the
demised premises, whenever the air conditioning system is in operation, and to lower and close the
blinds when reasonably necessary because of the sun's position. Landlord, throughout the term of
this lease, shall bave fres and unrestricted access lo the air conditioning facilities in the demised
premnises.

o [OI Buc
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Landiord reserves the right to interrupt, siispend or ceasc any of the services refemed
to hercin when necessary by reason of accident, or repairs, alteration or improvements which in
Landlord's option are necessary or desirable, or diFficulty or mability in securing supplies or labor,
orstrikes, or any other cause heyond the reasenable control of Land{ord whether similar or dissimilec
to thosc herein above mentioned. Tenant shall not be entitled {o any diminution or abatement of rent
or other compensation, and Tenant's obligations under this igase shall not be affected or reduced, by
rcason of any interruption, suspension or cessation of services.

29, Limited Liability

‘Tenant agrees that, notwithstanding any other provision of this lease, Landlord shall
not be under any personal lability under this lease and, if Landlord defaulis hereunder, Tenant shal)
lock solely to the interest of Landlord ot its succcssor in the demised premises for the satisfaction
of any judgment or other judicial process requiring the payment of money by Landlord based upon
any default bereunder, and no other assets of T.andlord or any such successor shall be subject e levy,
execution or ather enforcement procedure for the satisfaction of any such judgiment or process.

30. Indemnification bv Tenant

Tenant shall indemnify and hold Landlord hamless from and against any and all
liability, claim, loss, damage or expense, including reasonable attorneys' fees, by reason of any injury
to or death of any person or persons, or injury or damage to property, or otherwise, arising from or
in cannaction with the occupancy or use of the demnised premises or any work, installation or thing
whatsoever done in, at or about the demised premises, or resuliing from any default by Tenant in the
payment or performance of Tenamt's obligations under this lease or from any act, omission or
negligence of Tenant or any contraciors, agents, employces, customers, subtenants, licensees, guests
or invitees of Tenant. This Article 30 shall apply prior to the commencement of the term of this
lense if Tenant has possession or use of the demised premises.

31. Insurance

Tenant, at all times duving the term of this lease and at Tenant's expense, shall provide
and keep in force with insurcrs approved by Landlord comprehensive public liability and property
damage insurance protecting Landlord against any and all liability occasioned by negligence,
occurrence, accident, disaster and other risks included under "extended coverage” policies, occurring
in or about the demised premises or any part thereof, in amounts approved [from time to time by
Landlord, whith amounts at the date heveof shall be, in the case of public liability, $1,000,000 per
person and §2,000,000 per eccident, end $300,000 in the cage of property damage, and insurance
against such other hazards and in such amounts as is customarily carried by tenants in similar officc
buildings, as Landlord reasonably may request.
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All insurance maintained by Tenant pursuant to this Article 31 shall name Landlord
and Tenant as insureds, shall provide that any loss shall be payable 10 Landlord notwithstanding any
act or failure to act or negligence of Tandlord, Tenan{ or any other person, shall provide that na
cencellation, reduction in amount or material change in coverage thereof will be effective unti] at
least ten days after receipt by Landlord of written notce thereof, and shall be satisfactory to
Landlord, acting reasonably, in alf other respects.

Upon the execution of this lease and thereafier not less than fifieen days prior to the
expiration date of any policy delivered pursuant to this Article 31, Tenant shall deliver o Landlord
the originals of all policies or renewal policies, as the case may be, required by this leasa, hearing
nofations evidencing the payment of the premiums therefor.

If at any time Tenant shall peglect or fail to provide or maintain insurance or to
deliver insurance policies i accordance with this Article 31, Landlord may effect such insurance as
agent for Tenant, by taking oul policies in a company satisfactory to Landlord, and the amount of
the premivms paid for such insurance shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord on demand.

32. Estoppel Certificates

Tenant shall execute, acknowledge and dn::livcr to Landlord, prompily upon request,
a certificate stating: (a) Lhat this lease Is unmodified and in full force and cffect (or, if there have

been modifications, that this lease i in full force and effect, a3 modified, and identifying the

medifications); (b) the commencement and expiration dates of the term of this lease; (c) the dates
throngh which fixed rent and additional rent have been paid; (d) whether or net there is any existing
default by Landlord or Tenant with respect to which a notice of default has heen delivered, and if
there is any such default, specifying the nature and extent thereof; (e) that this lease is subordinate
to any cxasting or furure mortgage placed by Landlord on the building; and (f) whether or not there
are any setoffs, defenses ar counterciaims against the enforcement of any of the apreements, terms;,
covenants or conditions of this lease 10 be paid, complied with or performed by Tenant. Any such
certificate may be relied upon by Landlord and any morigagee, purchaser or other person with whom
Landlord may deal. - '

Landlord shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to Tenant, promptly upaon request,
a certificate stating: {a) that this lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or, i there have
been modifications, that this lease is in fill force and effect, as modificd, and identifying the
modifications); (b) the dates through which rent has been paid; and (¢) whether or not, to the
knowledge nf Landlord, there are any existing defaulls under this [case (and if so, specifying the
same).
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33, Secunitv Depaosit
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Tenant has deposited with Landlord the sum of $8,500.00 as secunity for the futland

faithful performance and observance by Tenant of the terms, covenants and conditions of this lease.
I Tenant defanlts in the performance or observance of any term, covenant or condition of this lease,
including without limitation the obiigation of Tenant to pay any rent or other sum required here-
under, Landlord may use, apply or retain the whole or any part of the security so deposited to the
extent required for the paymcat of any rent or any other sum as to which Tenant is in default or for
any sum which Landlord may expend ot may be required to cxpend by reason of Tenant's default,
including withow linitation any damages or deficiency acerued before or after summary proceedings
or other re-entry by Landlord. If Ycnant shall fully and faithfully observe and perform all of the
terms, covenants and conditions of this lease, the security, without interest, shall be returned to
Tenant after the end of the term of this lease and the delivery of possession of the demised premises
to Landlord.

34, Option fo Extend Term

Tenant shall have the option to extend the term of this lease for an additional five (5)
years, subject to all of the tcrms, covenants and conditions of this lease. During said extended term
of this feasc, Tenant shall pay fixed annual rent (payable monthly) at the mie of Base Rent for period
6/1/13 - 5/31/14 1o be increused by CPl in the manner provided in this lease and shall pay all other
itemns of rent.

To be effective, Tenant must give Landlord watten notice of Tenant's election to
extend the term of this lease not less than six months prior to the expiration of the then existing term
of this lease. Temant's right to extend the tenm of this lease pursuant to this Article 34 shall be
conditioned upon there being no defautt by Tenant in the performance or observance of any of the
terms, covenants and conditions of this lease either at the time of the excrcisc of the option or on the
expiration of the then existing term of this lease.

315, Brokerage

Tenant represents and warrants that Tepant has not dealt with any broker in
conncction with this lease or the negotiation or cxccution thereof, Tenant agrees to indemnify and
hald [andlord harmless from and against any claims, damage, liability or expense, including
attorneys' fees, pertaining to any brokeer with whom Tenant has dealt.



36. Modifications Reguested by Lender

If, in connection with obtaining financing or refinancing for the building of whieh the
demised premises form a part, a banking, insurance or other institutional lender shall request rea-
sonable modiflcations to this lease as & condition to such financing or refinancing, Tenant shall not
unreasonably withhold or delay its consent thereto, provided such modifications do not materially
adversely affect the leasehold interest hercunder or increase Tenant's obligations hereunder, except
to the extent that Tenant may be reguired to give notices of any defaul(s by Landlord to such lender
or permit the curing of such defaults by such leader topether with the granting of such additional
time for such curing as may be required for such lender to get possession of the building. Inno event
shall a requirement that the consent of any such lender be givea for any modification of this lease
or for any assignment-or sublease be deemed to materially adversely affect the leasehold interest
hereby created,

37. Notices
All nolices required or permitied to be given hereunder shall be scnt by Federal
Express courier or by rcgistered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid,

addressed 10 Landlord or Tenant at the ucddress herein above stated, or to Tenant at (he demiscd
premiscs, or to such other address as either party hereafter may designate by notice hereunder,

38. Misccllancous

Tepant shall reimburse Landlord for all reasonable attomeys' fees incurred in
conngction with actidwg to com i any provisipn ot this lease or
i gemed additional rent and

shall b ppdd on demand.

Neither this lease nor any memorandum thereof shall be recardced, without the prior
written congent of Landlord. :

The submission of this lease 1o Tenant shall not be construed as an offer or option,
and Tenans shall not have any rights hereunder unless and until Landlord shall execute 2 copy of this
lease and deliver the same to Tenant,

IN WITNESS WHERROF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this lease as afthe
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TENANT'S RIDER TO LEASE AGREEMENT
Lakeside wWAnAgmerT™ , LLC (LANDLORD)
with
Planned Parenthood of the Mid-Hudson Valley, Inc. (TENANT)
NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY OR
INCONSISTENT HEREWITH IN THE LEASE AGREEMENT TO
WHICH THIS IS A RIDER (THE “LEASE™), OR IN LANDLORD'S RIDER TO

LEASE, OR IN ANY OTHER RIDER THERETO,
THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

!. PERMITS AND APPROVALS.

{2} The Tenant may use and occupy the Demised Premises for the use and operation of 2
Medical Office and Clinic and for any customary and accessory uses.

(b) This Lease is subject to and conditioned upon the Tenant and/or Landlord obtaining any
and all necessary permits, consents and approvals, including without limitation, any Federal, State
and municipal permits and approvals required, for the use and operation of a Medical Office and
Clinic, and customary accessory uses (the *Project"™), including but not limited to New York State
Department of Health and City of Newburgh Zoning and Planning approvals, at the Leased Premises
on or before December 31, 2010 (the “Contingency Period™).

Tenant represents that they will exercise good faith in obtaining the required permits,
consents and approvals for the Project. In the event Tenant does not obtain all of the necessary and
required permits and approvals for the operation of the Project at the Leased Premises within the
time period provided herein, or in the event the Tenant receives a denial of any application for a
permit or approval made in connection with the Leased Premises, then the Tenant may elect to
terminate this Lease by written notice to the Landlord. Upon termination of this Lease, as provided
in this subparagraph, the Landlord shall return to the Tenant the security deposit and the pro-rated
portion of rent remaining for the month in which the Lease is terminated whereupon this Lease shall
be null and void, and without further force or effect and Tenant and Landlord shall be released from
any and all obligations under this Lease and neither party shall have any further rights or obligations
under this Lease, ' '

Tenant shail not use nor permit any part of the Leased Premises to be used for any unlawful
purposes or in violation of any zoning or municipal ordinance or regulation.

‘(’c) ‘Until all approvals have been received by Tenant during the Contiﬁge_.ncy Period the\
Fixed and Additional Rent together shall be in the amount of Five Thousand and 00/100 ($5,000.00) |
Dollars per month. At such time during the Contingency Period that the final approval is received,
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ATTACHMENT NO. 8

PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

OPERATING BUDGET

1. Projected Year | Operating Budget - PPMHV Overall

2. Operating Budget ~ Consolidated Site — Total
a. Projected First- and Third-Year Total Operating Expenses
b. Projected Total Utilization and Revenues by Payer — Year 1
c. Projected Total Utilization and Revenues by Payer — Year 3

3. Calculation of Depreciation

4, Monthly Cash Flow Analysis






PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

RELOCATION AND CONSOLIDATION OF EXTENSION CLINIC SITES/SERVICES

PROJECTED FIRST- AND THIRD-YEAR TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (2010 DOLLARS}

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES {CONSOLIDATED SITE}

Year1 Yeard

FTE Annual Cost FTE Annual Cost
Salaries
Clinician 2.00 $220,000 2.05 225,500
Heaith Care Assistant 6.00 $212,790 6.00 $212,790
Clerical 3.00 $90,000 3.15 594,500
Total Salaries 11.00 $522,750 11.20 $532,790
Fringe Benefits £156,837 $159,837
Professional Fees
Prafessianal Fees $181,156 5192,188
Total Professional Fees $181,156 $162,188
Medical/Surgical Supplies
Medical/Surgical Supplies $352,898 §374,389
Total Medical/Surgical Supplies £352,898 $374,389
Non-Medical/Non-Surgical Supplies
Office-Related Expenses 55,464 55,797
Tatal Non-Medical/Non-Surgical Supplies $5,464 $5,797
Other Direct Expenses
Training & Related Travel §3,338 $3.541
Communications 55,460 §5,793
Miscellaneous $19,987 $21,204
Total Other Direct Expenses $28,785 $30,538
Sub-Total $1,247,920 $1,295,540
Space Lease $109,856 $114,294
Depreciation - Existing $2,591 52,501
Depreciation - Buitding/Other $27.818 527,818
Sub-Total $140,265 $144,703
Total Expenses $1,388,195 $1,440,243










PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSQN VALL

RELOCATION AND CONSOLIDATION OF EXTENSION CLINIC SITES/SERVICES

CALCULATION OF DEPRECIATION

Calculation of Depreciation

‘Amoun : \Tiot
Leasehold Improvemeants/Qthar: $417.270 15 $27.818
Total: $417.270 $27,818




PLANNED PARENTHOOD OF THE MID-HUDSON VALLEY

RELCCATION AND CONSOLIDATION OF EXTENSION CLINIC SITES/SERVICES

MONTHLY CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

| Month 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Starting Cash $1,724,129 | $1,706,966 | $1,737,795] 51,768,624 | $1,799.453 § §1,830,282 | 51,861,111 ] $1,891941 | $1,922770} $1,953,599 ] 51,984,428 | $2,015257
Monthly Revenue $95,985 $143,578 $143,978 5143,978 $143,578 $143,578 $143,978 $143,978 $143,978 5143,978 3143,978 5143,978
Monthiy Expenses 5113,749 5113,148 $113,149 §113,145 $113,149 5113,149 $113,149 113,149 5113,149 $113,149 $113,149 $113,149
Remaining Cash $1,706,966 | $1,737,7951 51768624 | $1,799,453 | $1,830,282 | 81,861,141 51,891,941 | $1,922,770} $1,953,599 ] 51,984,428 | $2,015257 | $2,046,086

* The slarting cash in Year 1 represents the amount lisled under "Cash™ and "Invesiments” in the balance sheet of the 2008 Certified Financiat Statement of the appiicant.






